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To the Board of Directors of
Puero Rico National Gumd Institutional Tiust
(A Componem Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
San Juan, Puerto Rico

Reoort on the Fmancial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and aggregated remaining futrd
information of the Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust (FIGNA by its Spanish acronym), a component unit
of the Commonwealth of hrerto Rico, which compose the staEment of net position as ofJune 30, 2019 and the rclated
statement of rcvenues, expenses and changes in net position and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the relared
notes to the financial statemeoB.

Manaeernent's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prcparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted iD the Unitcd States of America; this includes the design, implemenotion,
and maintenance of intemal cootrol rclevant to the preparation and fai! presentation of fmancial staternents that arE

free from marcrial misstatement whether due to frard or eror.

Audiors' Resoonsibilitv

Our responsibility is m express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Thos€ standaxds rcquire that we plan and perform the audit to obmin reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An eudit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statenrents. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessmont of $e risks of
material misstatement of the financial sta@ments, whether due to fraud or error. .In making those risk assessmcnts,

the auditors consider intemal control rclevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of thi financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriat€ in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control, Accordingly, we expr€ss no such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasurableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall prcsentation of the financial statements.

We believe thar the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

PO BOx 364152 San Juan, PR 00936-4152
f 17s11725-4545 | F Og1l724-5ao2 | fpvgalindez.com
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To the Board of Directors of
Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Rrrto Rico)
San Juan, Puerto Rico
Page 2

FPV & CALI N DEZ .

Ooinion

In our opinion, the financial statemcns referrcd to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the hrsiness-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Puerto Rico National Guard
Institutional Trust, as of June 30, 2019, and the related changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally acceprcd in the United States of America-

Emohasis of Matter

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that FIGNA will continue as a going concem.
As discussed in Note 4, the financial condition of the Comrnonwealth of ttterto Rico (the Commonwealth) and the
Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) is an external matt€r that may affect the ability of FIGNA to
continue as a going concern.

FIGNA is a component unit of, 0q: Commonwcalth, which along witl most of its public corporations, including GDB,
arc in the midst of a profound ftscal crisis. Despite various measurcs undertaken in rccent years to stimulate economic
growth, reduce government expenses and increase revenues, the Commonwealth has been unable to spur economic
growth and eliminate the rEcurrent excess of expenditurEs over rcvenues.

otr June 30,2016, fte Puerto Rico Oversight, Managanent, and Economic Stability Act, Pub, Law 114-187

C'PROMESA" or the "Act"), was enacrcd into law. Ihis Aa estabtshes a Financial Oversight ard Management

Board for Pueno Rico (the "Oversight Board') to assist the Govenrment of Puerto Rico, including its
instrumentalities, in managing its public finances and fm other purposes.

On May 3, 20 I 8, the Oversight Board, on behalf of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, filed a petition for relief under

Title Itr of PROMESA in dre United States District Court fm the Disrict of Puefto Rico. Title m under PROMESA
provides for similar procedures to Chapter 9 and 1 I of the Fcderal Bankruptcy Code secking an orderly nestructuring

of the local public financcs which includes a debt adjustment process under the supervision of the court.

These conditions raise substantid doubts about the Commonwealth's, and therefore FIGNA's ability to continue as a

going concem for a reasonable period of time. Thc Commonwealth's plans rcgarding these matters are also described

in Note 4. The financial statements do not include any adjustment that might result from the ouccome of this

uncenainty. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not modified with rcspect to Olis matter.

]RUSJoorfluy



FPV & CALINDEZTo the Board of Diroctors of
Puerto Rico National Guard hstitutional Tlust
(A Componcnt Unit of the Comsrnwealth of Puerto Rico)
San Juan, hrerto Rico
Page 3

Otber Matter

Restatement

As discussed in Note 3 m the financial statements, FIGNA is a participant in the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico
Employees Retirement Systsm (the Pension Plan), a multi-employer retirement plan. Until lune 30, 2018, FIGNA
accounted for its participation in thc Pension Plan in accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, Accomtiag ond
Firuncial. Reporting fur Pensians. However, subsequent to the issuance of the 2018 financial statenrents, the
Employee Retirement System @RS) of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico provided the information needed as

required by GASB 68. Our opinion on the basic financial stateinents is not affected by this omitted information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managernent's discussion
and analysis on pages 4 through 9 and the Schedule of Proportionatc Shate of Net Pension Liability on page 35 be
presented to supplement thc basic financial statements. Such information, althorgh not a paft of the basic financial
statements, is requircd by the Govemmental Accounting Stadards Board, who considers it to be an esseotial part of
financial reponing for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
conExt. We have applied certain limitcd procedurcs to the required supplementary information in accordarrce with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United Starcs of America, which consisted of inquiries of management

about the methods of prcparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's

r€sponses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe
basic financial staternents. We do not exprcss an opinion or provide any assunrnce on the information because the

limited procedures do not provide us with sufficierrt evidence or any assurance to express an opiaion.

I

i

l!

San Juan Puerto Rico
Aagast 27 ,2021
License No. LLC-322
Expires December l, 2023
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Puerto Rico National Guard Institntional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Iv{anagement's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Introduction

Our discussion and analysis of the Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust's (FIGNA) financial performance
provides an overview of FIGNA's financial activities for the year ended June 30,2019. This discussion and analysis
were prepared by FIGNA's management and the readers are encouraged to review the financial statements and the
notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding of FIGNA's financial perfomrance.

The management's discussion and analysis is not a required part of the financial statements, but it is supplementary
infomration requrred by the govemmental accounting standards board. This supplementary infonnation is the
responsibility of FIGNA's management. The independent auditor has applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted pnncipally of inquiries to management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. therefore, the independert auditor did not audit such information and did not express an
opinion on it.

Financirl Highlights

Total assets at June 30, 2019 amounted to $58.0 millioq reflecting an increase of approximately $7.1 million
from June 30, 2018.

The operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2019 amounted to $6.5 million, an increase of
approximately $27 thousand over the prior fiscal year. Operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019
amounted to $6.2 million, an increase of $600 thousand when compared to June 30, 2018. The non-operating
revenues amounted to approximately $6.9 million at June 30,2019 compared to non-operating expenses of
approximately $35 thousand in the prior year.

Net position increased approximately $7.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2019.

:l

:t

:l

Overview of The Financirl Stetemenb

FIGNA is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (hoeinafter refared to as the Commonwealth) and
is presented in the Commonwealth's governmental-wide financial staternents as an enterprise fund.

This discussion and analysis is requhed supplunentary information to the basic financial statements and is intended
to serve as introduction to FIGNA'S financial statements, which include: l) Statement ofnet position, 2) Staternent of
revenues, expenses, and change in net position, 3) Statement ofcash flows, and 4) Notes to financial statements.

l) Strtement of Net Position - This statement presents information on all FIGNA's assets, deferred outflow of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between, assets plus deferred
outflow of resources, and, fiabilities plus deferred inllow of resources, reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in FIGNA's net position may serve as a useful indicator ofwhether its frnancial position
is improving or deteriorating.

2) Strtemetrt of Revenues, Expenses and Chrnges in Net Position - This statement presents information
showing how FIGNA's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underllng went giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this stateinent for some items that will only
result in cashflows in future fiscal periods.

-4-



Puefio Rico National Guard Instituional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commomlealth Puerto Rico)
Ivlanagement's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June i0, 2019

3) Statement of Cash Flows - This statement present information related to cash flows of FIGNA's by the
following categories: operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing
activities afld investing activities. This statement also portrays the health of FIGNA's as current cash flows
are suffrcient to pay current liabilities.

4) Notes to Financirl St tements - The notes to financial statements axe an integral part ofthe basic financial .
statements and describe the significant accounting policies, relat€d-party.transactions, deposits, irvestnents,
capital assets, long-term liabilities, defined-benefit pension plan, the commitments and contingencies. The
reader is encouraged to review the notes in conjunction with the management discussion and analysis and the
financial statements-

FIGNA uses fund accormting to help ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. The
firnds ofFIGNA are as follows:

Proprietary fund - this fimd is used to show activities that operate more like those of commercial enterprises.
Because these funds charge fees for services provided to outside customers they are known as enterprise
funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fimd financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting. The
following is a brief description of FIGNA's proprietary funds:

Operational funds - accounts for all financial resources not required to be accounted in another fund.
Primary sources ofrevenues consist of38% of the concession revenues, rental income and interest
on investments-

Annuities fund - accounts for tlree benefits programs: l) annuities 2) life insurance 3) firneral
insurance. Primary sources of revenues consist of 52% of the concession revenues and iaterest on
investuents.

Educational fund - accounts for financial resources p,rovided to help cover educational expenses.
Primary sources ofrevenues consist of l(P/o ofthe concession revenues and interest on invesfinents.

Major Finencial Elements

Revenues

FIGNA's revenues are principally derived from concession royalties received under an agre€ment to operate military
stores, and interest income from invesfrnents, which are dishibuted to FIGNA's three major funds: l) Operational
Fund, 2) Annuities Fund, and 3) Educational Fund. The firnds were established by Act No. 23 of July 23, 1991. In
addition, the Annuities Fund, receives the Puerto Rico National Guard mernbers' contributions, to offset, on a limited
basis, the cost ofbenefits.

-5-



Puerto Rico National Guard Instilational Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonweakh Puerto Rico)
l,tanagement's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Expenses rnd Crpitrl Ouflays

Expenses consist principally of benefits paid to the members of the Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust.
Including payment ofeducation expenses, temporary assistance to retired members, life and fimeral benefits, among
other services. Also, includes, adminishative experses like salaries, enerry costs, repair and maintenance (of
FIGNA's facilities) and professional fees. Furthermore, at times, FIGNA defray the cost of certain repair and
maintenance performed to the property ofthe National Guard ofPuerto Rico.

Financirl Analysis of FIGNA's Business-Type Activities

The following table presents a summary of FIGNA's net position at Jrme 30, 2019 and 2018:

20t9
(RestatEd)

2018 Chanee
Assets:

Current assets
Nqr-current assets
Capital assets

Total assets s7 969578

Deferred outllows of resqrrce from pensi:n activitbs

s 8:737265
33,t7s2@

$ 7,163,108
27,67250.2
[s988477

50.,824987

$ 1574,157
55O2,7O7

68,627

7,t45,49t

(222A34)

3t9,ag
(491,41t')

I M

5

Liabilitbs:
Curent liab ities
Non-current liabiltbs

Total lisbiliries

Deferred inflows of reso.rrce frorn pensirn activitbs

Net position:
Investment in capital assets
RestrbGd
Unrestrbted position

Total net positlm

1,701,135
84938

2,s4271

16,057,104
35,792;782

3,809,935

1,381A41
1,336384

7 171

167

1s,988477
30,745,t78

1,7t7 3so

ll

68,6n
5,U7,ffi
2,092,585

$ I $ I 16

The Statements ofNet Position presents FIGNA's assets, deferred outflow ofresources, liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources, with the difference between, assets plus deferred outflow of resources, and, liabilities plus deferred

inllow of resources, reported as net position, excluding the balance due between finds, which are considered intemal

balances that have been eliminated in the Statemeot ofNet Position. The net position is reported in three categories:

investsnent in capital assets, net ofrelated debt, restricted and unrestricted net position. Restricted net position may

either be expendable or nonexpendable and are those assets that are restricted by law or by an extemal donor.

Unrestricrcd net position often has constraints on resources imposed by management, which can be removed or
modified.
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Puerlo Rico National Guard Institutional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonvealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unoudited)
For the Year Ended June i0, 2019

The Statement ofNet Position is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recognized
when the service is provided by and expenses are recognized when others provide the service to FIGNA, regardless
of when cash is exchanged. Assets and liabilities included in the Statements ofNet Position are classified as curr€nt
or noncurrent. FIGNA's cash outlays for capital assets, are not expenses, and therefore are capitalized, as incuned.

Current rssets - FIGNA's assets increased by $1.6 million in June 30,2019 from June 30,2018. Such increase was
mainly due to the increase in cash provided by operating activities.

Crpital ,ssets - FIGNA's current capital assets increased from $16.0 million at June 30, 2018, to $16.1 million at
June 30, 2019. Change was due to capital expendihres amounting to $1.3 million offset by depreciation expense
amounting to $1.2 million.

Investments - FIGNA's investnents consist of municipal bonds issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or
related agencies, and deposits. FIGNA's investsnents are reported at fair value in the statement of rct position.
FIGNA's total investments increased from $27.7 million at June 30, 2018, to $33.2 million at June 30, 2019. The
increase of $5.5 million is mainly attributable to cash generated by the operations of FIGNA which management
decided to invest. During the year 2019, FIGNA received approximately $.8 million by concept ofinterest.

Current lirbilities - Current liabilities consist ofaccounts payable and accrued liabilities. Cunent liabilities reflected
an increase ofapproximately $300 thousand from $1.4 million at June 30, 2018 to $1.7 million at June 30, 2019.

Net position - Net position repnesents the residual interest in FIGNA's assets and deferred outflow of resources after,
liabilities plus deferred inflow of resources, are deducted. FIGNA's net position increased approximately by $7.2
million at June 30,2019. The increase in net position was mainly due to the increase in the fair value of investments
and the interest income on investments.

This space has been intmtionally lefi in blank
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Paerto Rico National Guard Insftlultonal Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
fuIanagement's Discussion and Analysis (UnauditeQ
For the Year Ended June 30, 20 I 9

STATEMENT OF REVEI\ruES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN ITET POSITION - PROPRIETARY
FT'NDS

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position - proprietary firnds show the sources of FIGNA's
changes itr net position as they arise through its various programs and functions. A condensed summary of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 is shown in the following
table:

(Restated)

2018

Operating revenues:

Concessionaire royalties
Rpntal irconrc
Mlitary coributions
Ofler

Total revenres

Operatirg expenses:

Administration
Disnibuted benefits

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non operating (expenses) revemres

Increase in net position

Net position, beginning ofyear, as restarcd

Net position, end ofyear

6,455,657 6429,102 26,555

2019

s 5,400,000 $
813,887

240,710
1,060

4,897A68 $
795,699
283,081

452,854

502,532
18,188

(42,37t)
(4st,794)

32s1,398
2,93s966

269,r93

6,939,623

7 l6

3,728227

5J76279

652,823

617

(476,829\

887,014

I 4t 185

(383,630)

I 17

484s1,005 47,833,506 617499

$5 l $48 I $7 t6

The Condensed Statem€nts ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, presents FIGNA's operations results

based on operating revenues, less operating expenses, plus non-operating revenues.

Oper.titrg Revenues - FIGNA's operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2019 were on line with op€rating
revenues for the year ended June 30,2018. Approximately 84% of FIGNA's revenues for the year ended June 30,
2019 is fiom the royalties received from the concession agreement for the operations ofthe Duty-Free Shops located
at Fort Allen in Juana Diaz, San Juan, Cayey, Ceiba, Gurabo, Mayagiiez, Arecibo and Vega Baja.

Openting Expenses - FIGNA's total orperating expenses, increased by approximarcly $400 thousand in comparison
with the prior fiscal year. Increase is mainly attibuted to a $900 thousand increase in General benefits to the Puerto
Rico National Guard and its members.

-8-



Puerto Rico National Gaard Institwional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discassion and Analys is (UnauditeQ
For the Yeor Ended June 30, 2019

Non0perating Revenues @rpenses) - For the year ended Jue 30, 2019, FIGNA reported non-operating reveoues
of $6.9 million, resulting primarily from the interest eamed from investuents amounting to approximately $800
thousand and a change in fair value (increase) of investuents amounting to approximately $6.1 million while in 2018
FIGNA reported a change in fair value (decrease) of $900 thousand with $900 thousand in interest income.

Informatiotr request

This section ofthe Management's Discussion and Analysis is designed for anyone interested in obtaining an overview
ofthe finances ofFIGNA. Questions regarding infonnation in this section should be addressed to Puerto Rico National
Guard Institutional Trust Office ofthe Executive Director, PO Box 9023786, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 00902-3786.

-9-



Puerto Rico National Guard Institational Trust
(A Component Unit ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico)
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019

Burh.. -IYD. Acltullcr - f,lt nft. IU
OpenthDl Amlllet

Ilnd
Eturdorrl

Flnd

A$cb
Cmr rltctl

CarL ad calh equitab6
Acmufi rEceilabb

Irercs rcceiwbb

Drr too otter fnds

kpail e$erE€s

Iohl c|Irr alrab

Norlr[lt Airct
In€sffi
Capial asseh

Tohl Dmltrrtd r$€b

ill|fin r,i!l InIl

$ 5,471,0U $ 1,824605 $ 558,083 $

255,472 268,U3 45,000

41,677 70,783 t3,6t2
- 4,455 1,M7,641 00210,096)

34,364 141,822

5,808,517 11,474508 t,664,336 00J10,096)

$ 7,853,69

569,315

t32,012

182,186

8,737,265

Ireftnrd odor! of nromc totr p.Itbr rcah'lder

Tohl $tcb rrd &&rrd odfos of Eroun r

L,llufthr
Ctrcd lrHlder:

Ac.ord payabb ud accnred hbi&ir
DEt othrfuds

5r[fl ll.--,T'IlrTl.rft I'l

NoEurE L&U[ak!
Netptrbohbfy

nnrTlrYrtffiPtt

Dcfctrtdiibi! of Etortrr. fiD[ IeDhD rdiviiet

Totrl lhhhier rd &ftnrd ldon of rcrom.r

Net Xolitbr
N€t inEsM hcspid.ss.s
REltud br!6yMofb@to
UElsbbd

16,057,t04

26,091,243 19,277,251 3,857,819

31,905J60 30,151,759 5,522,t55 00210,096) 57,9$,518

289,778 289,7't8

$ 32,195,538 $ 30,751,759 $ 5,522,155 $ 00210,096) $ 58259,356

Iot l sreh

Totrl Et Ioritbr

10,040,139 t9277,251 3,857,819 33,t75,209

16,057,1u

49,232,313

$ l2lp50 $ $ 1,701,335

002l0,096)

n130,299 418,542 (10210,096) 1,70t,335

$ t,576,795

9,853,5(x

844,938

12,275,237

53,262

t2,328,499

3,809,935

19,867,039

$ 2,590

2,590 478,W 00:10,096)

2,590 478,W 00210,096)

844,936

2,546,271

2,599,535

16,057,104

30,149,169 5,043,6t3

16,057,104

35,Tn782
3,809,935

55,659,82130,749,169 5,043,613

To.rl lirhlilie.- &feicd i oq of 1ctom.!.dEtDrhr .9.,;lll:!:flry.;!j:]:gl:l.!.,,]!qPgI $ 58 259.355

See eco[earyigDEs b barb frErEll sffi
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Puerto Rico National Gaard Instilutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonweahh ofPuerto Rico)
Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

iirtl AcdvllLi - Ente I'utrdr

Fund
Arruldca

Futrd
Fiocrllond

F\r!d
OFr.drg llv.mlet

ConcessbDairE royatics
Rentrl hco.rE
Mihary conrilattbns
OOlcr

Total operatirg rEvenu€s

ODerrting erpen!et:

Admltrltr.dve erpersc.
Payroll ard rehtcd ereerses
Perlsim bemfit
Deprecbtim.Dd anErtizstirl
Professiroal se bes
Utihies
ReI,aiN .Dd mrhtetrance
Offte nuterbb
Other .&riinbtrative erpeise g

Bad dcbt expense
Insuiame

Total adminbtrativE expenses

Dirtrlbutcd bGreit3
Atrrntitbs expeNes
Edrcatiroal elpenses
Life iasunice
General betrefns to the Puqto Rico

Natiroal Cuard and its meEbers

Total dbErhrted benefrs

Total operarhg expenses

Opcr.tirg imoEe (lort)

Noflsrating revErtrEs (expe6es):
Irf€rest
Change in fat r/ElE of hvestEnts

Total non-operatidg revenEs (expeNes)

Trarftts b (out)

Net ch.nges h rct p6lbd

Net potitior, begiEing of the year, .s restated

Nct tDsltioq erd ofth€ year

$ 2p52W $
El3,tt7 '*'y $

2fiJtO

Tot l

5,0,000 $ 5,,m,m0
_ tl3,E87
- z&:no

2$66947 3,O48J10 5,0,m 645s557

30lJm
(345550)

r2!4465
812J50
283327
63628

54,454
94,8E3

68,m0
?A$sr 86,880

301508
(345550)

r234A6s
812350
283,327
63628
v,4v
94,E83

58,0m

3,164J18 86,880

1,016J69

1p16,569

lJl62m
344fil

57,696

1573f96 344,@r

\ffi:r16 14fir

t38793/. t9s39D

4,181,0s7

(rrl4r40)

3166m
235t,W

.. 2668,44

8ffi,892

2,t61212

t7:tosp1

361985

3218335

3JE03Z)

(66.7545\

ll
325t398

rJl62m
344fil

57 fE6

1,016J69

293sW

6J86464

269,193

750J18

6,189,105

71933
6r89r0

690i43 6939,623

(139347)

43m;t$ 76ps

26!448.m 4296Jt8

7208,816

,16.451.m5

$ 19,867,m9 $ 30,7i19,1@ $ 5,043,613 $ 55,559,821

-11 -

See accouponying rotes to basic fDsrcial stateEErts



Puerto Rico National Guail Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico)
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June i0, 2019
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Puerto Rico Nationul Guard Institational Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

,

1. REPORTINGENTITY

FIGNA is a component unit ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico. It is a public corporation ascribed to the
Puerto Rico National Guard and created by Act No. 23 of hily 23,1991 (Act 23). FIGNA owns or has the
rights ofuse for the real property and other property where the military shops (Duty Free Shops) are located.
Under Act 23, FIGNA has the authority to operate the military shops or to concession those operations to a
private party as well as to provide assistance benefits to the Puerto Rico National Guard members, spouEs,
and descendants, including annuities, education and operational fufils. FIGNA is exempt from taxation in
Puerto Rico.

FIGNA receives royalties from gross sales from the concessionaire that operates the Duty-Free Shops located
at Fort Allen in luana Diaz; the municipalities of San Juan, Cayey, Ceiba, Gurabo, Mayaguez, Arecibo, and
Vega Baja; Air Base Muniz in Carolina; military antique collections in San Juan; and USCG Air Station
Borinquen in Aguadilla.

FIGNA has the power to issue bonds for any principal amount that the Board ofDirectors considers necessa5r.
It can also create the necessary reserves to guarantee the payments ofsuch bonds and for the payment ofother
expenses that FIGNA considers necessary.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AI\ID STIMMARY OF SIGMTICA]\IT ACCOIJNTIITG POLICIBS

Use of estimdes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires matragement to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stat€rnents, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenseVexpetrditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Measarurnent locus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Sralement Prescntorion

The accompanying basic financial staternents are prepared using the economic resources measurernent focus
and the accrual basis ofaccounting. Accordingly, revenues arc recognized when eamed and expenses when
incurred, regardless ofthe timing ofrelated cash flows.

Propriaary Fuads

FIGNA maintains three major funds, which are proprietary fimd types. These funds account for those
activities for which the intent of mrnag€ment is to recover, primarily through user charges, the cost of
providing goods or services to the public. The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses
from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from FIGNA providing the
services that correspond to their principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues are generated mosdy from
concessionaire royalties and rental income. Operating expenses include depreciation and amortization,
professional services, utilities and all ge,neral and adminishative expenses, among other. Revenues and
expenses not meeting these defrnitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Puerto Rico National Gaard Insfuwional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

The following is a description ofthe nature and purpose ofeach fund type:

Operational Fund - This fimd is the primary operating fund of FIGNA. It is used to account for all financial
resources excqrt those required to be accounted for in other funds. The primary sources ofrevenue eamed by
this fund are the concession income from the military shops, of which 38 percent is assigned by law, rental
income and interest income from investments. Such revenues must be used for the constnrction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation and maintenance of facilities; to complement the legislative appropriations
received annually by the Puerto Rico National Guard to attend to its administrative and operating expenses;
to supplemeot the expenses of the National Guard; to meet expeases that lead to bolstering the "esprit de
corps" of the meurbers of the Puerto Rico National Guard and the social well-being, enjoymen! recreation
and other non-profit purposes thereof, and to cover the administrative expenses of FIGNA, as established
through regulations adopted to such effects by virtue ofAct 23.

Annuities Fund - this firnd is used to account for three benefit programs to the active and retired members of
the Puerto Rico National Guard. The Annuities Program provides temporarily assistance to retired members
of the Puerto Rico National Guard who are at least 55 years old and have provided at least 20 years of
honorable service. Qualified retired members receive a monthly annuity of $ I 75 for a period up to five years

or until altaining age 60 and become eligible to receive benefits from the Federal Govemment. The Life and
Funeral Insurance Programs are available to active members of the Puerto Rico National Guard and retired
members that quatry for the Annuities Progam. The Life Insurance Program provides a fixed benefit of
$5,ffi0 paid to the beneficiaries, as designated by the insured. The Funeral Insurance Program provides benefit
ofup to $3,(X)0 for un-reimbursed funeral expenses. The beneficiary must provide evidence to support the
amount requested- The primary sources of revenue eamed by this fund are the concession income from the
military shops, of which 52 percent is assigned by law, and interest income from investueots. Also, active
members must pay a montlly premium of $5 to be entitled to the benefits under these programs. The benefits
of the program may be adjusted at the discretion of the Board of Directors to account for cost of living
inflation. The administrator ofthese programs cannot commit funds in excess ofprojected revenues in order
to maintain actuarial based reserves factoring in an inflation of 3olo.

Educational Fund - this fund is used to account for financial resources provided to help cover educational
expenses incurred by the active members ofThe Puerto Rico National Guard and their family. The primary
sourcei of revenue eamed by this fimd are the concession income from the military shops, ofwhich l0 percent
is assigned by law, and interest income frorr investuients. The educational expenses, as defined in the
econorric assistance program, includes eryollment at university levels and post-secondary level. The amounts
to be reimbursed are determined by the Board ofDirectors.

Cash and cosh equivalerls

For financial statements purposes, FIGNA considers all hiehly liquid inshuments purchased with a maturity
of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.

fnvesbronfr

Investrrents are carried at fair value, except for nonparticipating investment contracts (guaranteed investment
contracts and/or certificates of deposit), which are canied at cost. Fair value is determined based on quoted
market prices and quotations received from independent broker/dealers or pricing service organizations.
Investnent income, including changes in the fair value of inves[nents, is presented as interest income in the
stat€rnent ofrevenues, expenses, and changes in net assets - proprietary funds. Realized gains and losses from
the sale of investnents and unrealized changes in the fair value of outstanding inveshnents are included in
the chaoge in the fair value of investuents.

t4



Pueilo Rico National Guard Instilultonal Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Fair Value Measarement

FIGNA categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hioarchy established by generally
acce?t€d accounting principles- The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Capital assets

FIGNA defines capital assets as assets that (i) have an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more at the date of
acquisition; and (ii) have a useful life of two or more years. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the time of donatioa.

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated usefirl lives. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed and amortized over the estimated usefirl life ofthe
improvements. The costs ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the assets or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized and charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense has
been incurred.

Capital assets of the proprietary funds are depreciated on the straight-line method over the assets' estimated
useful life. There is no depreciation recorded for land and construction in progress.

The estimated useful life ofcapital assets is as follows:

Descriotion Years

Buildings and rights to use
Leasehold improvernents
Equipment
Vehicles

20-40 yean
5-15 years

5 years
5 years

Irrrpoiment of Capital Assels

FIGNA accounts for asset impairment under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and

Financial Reporting for tnpairment of Capital Assets and tor Insurance Recoveries. This statement

establishes accolmting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is

considered impaired when its service utility has declined sipificantly and unexpectedly. This shrcment also

establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. A capital asset generally should be considered

impaired ifboth (a) the decline in service utility ofthe capital asset is large in magnitude and (b) the event or
chenge in circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. Impaired capital assets that will
no longer be used by the govemment should be reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value.

Accoant rcceivable

As ofJune 30, 2019, all accounts receivable presented in the financial statements are considered collectable,

therefore, no provision for doubffrl accounts has been recorded in FIGNA's financial statements. During the

year ended June 30, 2019, FIGNA wrote offuncollectible rent amounting to $68,000.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Insfuutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Borsic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Accounting lor pension cosls

FIGNA is a participant in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employees Retirement System (the Pension
Plan), a multiemployer retirement plan. Until June 30, 2018, FIGNA accounted for its participation in the
Pension Plan in accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, however, because of the implernentation ofthe pay-as-you-go (PayGo) system, as provided by Act
No. 106 of 2017 (Act l0Q, the Pension Plan no longer met the criteria to be considered a plan that is
administered through a trust or equivalent arrangement uoder GASB 68 and, therefore, it was required to
apply the guidance in GASB 73 , Accormting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Asse* That
Are Not wilhin lhe Scope of GASB Statement 68, otd Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements
67 and 68, etreaive July 1, 2018. As discussed in Note 3, the basic financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2018 did not include the effects of the adjustnents required by the actuarial report ofthe Plan which
resulted in a net change in net position as prwiously r€ported at the beginning of the year of $158,248.
Additionally, for the year ended June 30, 20 I 9, the adoption of GASB 73 resulted in a net pension benefit of
$345,550 as of July l, 2018, which is presented as part of operations in the accompanying statfirent of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB 73, FIGNA recognizes a pension liability for its proportionate share of
the collective pension liability under the Pension Plan, as well as its proportionate share of the collective
deferred outflows of resources, collective defened inflows of resources, and collective pension expense.
FIGNA's allocation percentage is based on the ratio of FIGNA's benefit paym.ents to total benefit payments
under the Pension Plan. Changes in the total pension liability during the period are recorded as pension
expense, or as deferred inflows ofresources or deferred ouflows ofresources depending on the nature ofthe
change, in the period incurred. Those changes in the total pension liability that are recorded as deferred
in{lows of resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or
other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the average of the
remaining service life of all participants including retirees, in the qualified pension plan and recorded as a
component ofpension expense beginning with the period in which they arose.

Defered Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Sht€ment of Net Position reports a separate section for defened outflows of
resources. This separate financial statcment element, defemed ouflows of resources, represents an increase

in ofna position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources as of June 30,2019 relate to FIGNA's
participation in the Pension Plan.

In addition to liabilities, the Stat€rn€nt of Net Position rqrorts a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows ofresources represent a reduction of net position and resources that applies to a

future period(s) and so will not be recogrized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Classifrcation of rut posilbn

The statement of net position presents FIGNA's assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting

with the difference r€ported as net position. Net position is reported in three carcgories:

Net investment in Cqitat lssers - these consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization, and reduced by outstanding balances of debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction,

or improvemetrt ofthose assets.
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Puerto Rtco National Gaard Instilatianal Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Restricted Net Posirrbn - these results when constraints placed on the net position's use are either extemally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - this consists of the net position that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories. Unreshicted net position often has consraints on resources that are imposed by
management but can be removed or modified. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, generally, it is FIGNA's policy to use reshicted r€sources first, then the unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

Compensated absences

The employees of FIGNA eam 15 &ys of vacation and 18 days of sick leave annually. Vacation and sick
leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 60 and 90 days, rcspectively. In the event of employee
resignation, an employee is paid for accurnulated vacation up to the maximum allowed. The proprietary fund
financial statements present the cost ofaccumulated vacation as a liability.

Interfund transadions

Int€rfund tansactions represent funds disbursed or services provided by one fund on behalf of another fimd-
These hansactions are recorded through int€rfund rcceivables and payables and presented as amomts due to
and due from other fund. Interfund transactions where resources are transferred betrreen fimds, without
requirernent for repayment are recorded as hansfers in by recipient fund and as transfer out by the disbursing
fund, under other financing sourceVuses below operating transactions, in the stateorents of revenues,
expenses and changes in net assets. However, these transfers and related amounts receivable and payable are
considered intemal balances and activities that have been eliminated in the financial stat€ments' total column.

Renlal income

Rental income is recogni"ed as rentals become due. Reirtal payments received in advance are deferred until
eamed. All leases benveen FIGNA and the tenants are operating leases.

Risk managenent

FIGNA is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of damage to, and destruction ofassets; business

interruption, errors and omissions, natural disaster, among other. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial insurance

coverage in any ofthe three preceding years.

Fatare Adoplion of Accounliag Prunouncernen&

The following summarizes new accounting standards that have been issued but are not yet effective which

may have a direct and material effect on the Corporation's financial statem€nts once they are adopted.
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Paerto Rico Nafional Guard Institutional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

GASB

Statement No.
Adoption required in

fscal year

2021

2022

2020

2022

2021

2023

2022

2022

2023

2023

2022

84

87

88

89

90

9l

92

93

94

96

Name

Filuciary Activitbs

Leases

Cerrain Disclosures Rehted to Debl inchrding Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements

Accounting for Interest Cost Incuned before the End of
a Constuctbn Perbd

Majority Equity Interesh, an amendm€nt of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 6l

Conduit Debt Obligations

Omnbus 2020

Replacement of Interbak Ofened Rates

Publfo-Private and Public-Publb Partrershbs and
Avaihbility Payment Anangernents

Subscription-Based Infonnation Technologr
Arrangemenb

Certain Component Unit CriteriA and Accounting and

Financial Reporting for Intemal Revenue Code Section
457 Defened Compensation Plans--an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a

supersession of GASB Statement No. 3297

3, RESTATEMENTOTNETPOSITION

FIGNA is a participant in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employees Retilement System (the Pension
Plan), a multiemployer retirement plan. Until June 30, 2018, FIGNA accounted for its participation in the
Pension Plan in accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reponing for
Pensions. However, the actuarial report for the Pension Plan was not available as of the date the financial
statemeots, as of atrd for the year ended June 30, 2018, were available to be issued. Accordingly, the basic
financial statements did not include the effects ofthe adjustments required by such actuarial report as ofand
for the year ended June 30, 20 I E, which resulted in a net change in net position as previously reported at the
beginning of the year amounting to $158,28, as follows:
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Paefio Rico National Gaard Institutianal Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonweahh Puerto RicQ
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Idflin

Net position - beginning ofyear, as previcusly repored
GASB Statement No. 68 actuarial report adjushents
for the year ended June 30, 20 I 8 for:

Deferred outflows ofresources from pension activities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resource from pension activities

Net position - beginning ofyear, as restated

$ 17,864,075

260,3&
(27r$u)
047,088)

t7 705

4. GOINGCONCERN

GASB Statement No.56, Codifuation of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the
AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards (GASB 56), establishes that the continuation ofa legally separate
govemmental entity as a going concem is assumed in fmancial reporting in the absence of significant
information to the contrary.

Information that may significantly contradict the going concern assumption would relate to a govemmental
entity's inability to continue to meet its obligations as they become due without substantial disposition of
assets outside the ordinary course of govenrmental operations, reshucturing of debt, submission to the
oversight ofa separate {iscal assistance authority or financial review board, or similar actions- Indicators such
as negative tends in operating losses and negative cash flows, possible financial difficulties such as

nonpayment or default of debt and/or restructurings or noncompliance with capital or reserve requirements,
and intemal or extemal matters impacting the govemmental entity's ability to meet its obligations as they
become due, are factors that are considered in this evaluation.

Management's evaluation of FIGNA's going concem has identified the financial condition of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Commonwealth) and the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico
(GDB) as an extemal matter that may affect the ability of FIGNA to continue as a going concem.

Following is a briefexplanation of the financial diffrculties being faced by the Commonwealth:

The Commonwealth is undergoing a severe fiscal, economic and liquidity crisis, as I result ofyears of large

govemmental deficits, economic recession, high unemployment, population decline, and high levels of debt

and pension obligations. Further stressing the Commonwealth's liquidity is the vulnerability of revenue

streams during times of economic downtums and significant health care, pension and debt service costs. As

the Commonwealth's tax base has decreased and its revenues affected by prevailing economic conditions,

health care, pension and debt service costs have become an increasing portion of the Comrnonwealth's

General Fund budget, which has resulted in reduced firnding available for other services, including the

Corporation. Tbe dommonwealth s high level of dett and unfunded pension.liabilities, and tttg 
-rcsultinB

allocation of revenues to service debt and pension obligations contributed to significant budget deficits for

sweral years that were covered by the issuance of additional debt'

These matters and the Commonwealth s liquidity constraints, arnong other factors, adversely affected its

creaii raiings ana its ability to obtain financing at ieasonable int€rest rates, if at all. Fwthermore, the principal

i"G "i*-.i* 
n"* lowercd their rating on 6e general obligation bonds ofthe Commonwealth to a default
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Puerto Rico National Gaard Instilutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commomveahh Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

rating. These agencies have also lowered to a default grade their ratings on the bonds of certain of the
Commonwealth's instrumentalities, while other debt ratings have been lowered multiple notch. es to
noninvestuent grade levels.

As of June 30,2018, the date of the most recent audited financial statements of the Commonwealth, the
Primary Govemment of the Commonwealth reflects a net deficit of approximately $72.8 billion.

These conditions raise substantial doubh about the Commonwealth's, and therefore the Corporation's, ability
to continue as a going concem for a reasonable period of time.

On June 30, 2016, the Puerto Rico Oversight Management, and Economic Stability Act, Pub. Law I 14-187
(PROMESA) was enacted into law. PROMESA establishes a Financial Oversight and Management Board
for Puerto Rico (the Oversight Board) to oversee the finances of the Commonwealth and its efforts to achieve
fiscal responsibility and obtain access to capital markets. A critical component of PROMESA is the
requirernent for the Commonwealth to develop and maintain a fiscal plan. Such fiscal plau must contain
numerous provisions the territory or instrumentality, including plans to pay debts, eliminate
deficits, maintain essential public services and impose intemal conrols for flscal govemance and
accountability.

On April 23, 2021, the Oversight Board certified its most recent fiscal plan for the Commonwealth that
included the following categories of shucoral reforms and fiscal measur€s:

a. Human Capital and Welfare Reform

b. K12 Education Reform

c. Ease ofDoing Business Reform

d. Power Sector Regulatory Reform

e. Infrastruchrre and Capital Investnent Reform

f. Esablishment of the Office of the CFO

g. Agency Effrciency Measures

h. Medicaid Reform

i. Enhanced Tax Compliance and Optimized Taxes and Fees

j . Reduction in UPR and Mrmicipality Appropriations

k. Comprehensive Pension Reform

Also, the Oversight Boar4 on behalfofthe Commonwealth and certain instumentalities, has filed voluntary
petitions for reliefunder Title III ofPROMESA in the United States District Court for Puerto Rico (the Court).

Title III ofPROMESA provides for similar procedures to Chapters 9 and 11 ofthe Fedaal Bankruptcy Code

seeking an orderly restruchring of the local public finances, which includes a debt adjustnent process under

the supervision of the Court.

There are no assurances that these plans and other relief measures to be adopted or proposed by the

Corporation, the Oversight Board and the Commonwealth will be fully implemented or if implernented will
ultimately provide the intended results. The successfirl implementation of these plans tlepends on a number

of factors and risks, some of which are not within the Corporation's and/or the Commonwealth's control.
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Puerto Rico National Gaard Insitaional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June i0, 2019

Complete financial statements of the Commonwealth can be obtained directly by contacting their respective
administrative offices at:

Department ofthe Treasury ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico
,Area de C,ontabilidad Cenhal
P.O. Box 9024140, San Juan, PR fi)902

Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico
P.O. Box 42001, San Juan, PR 00940-2001

Management's Conclasion on Going Concern

FIGNA's management considers that substantial doubt might exist about the ability ofFIGNA to continue as

a going concem as the Commonwealth may impose its will over FIGNA and try to access its assets in order
to alleviate their liquidity problerns. As of the date ofissuance ofthese financial statements, no notifications
have been received from the Cornmonwealth regarding discontinuance ofoperations or int€ntions to access
our assets. Moreover, FIGNA does not expect to rcceive any future notification regarding those matters in
the foreseeable future.

5. CASHAND DEPOSITS PLACED WITH BA}IKS

The table presented below discloses the level of custodial credit risk assumed by FIGNA at June 30, 2019.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event ofa financial institution's failure, FIGNA's deposits may not
be retumed to it. The Commonwealth requires that public funds deposited in commercial ba*s in Puerto
Rico must be firlly collateralized for the amourt deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. All
securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of the Commonwealth. Funds
deposited with GDB or the Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico (EDB), a component unit of the
Commonwealth, are not covered by this Commonwealth requirement.

As of June 30, 2019, $137,332 of the depository bank balance of $8,021,315 was uninsured and
uncollateralized as follows:

Carrying

Alrtotmt

Depository

Bank Bahnce

Amormt
rminsued and

' 'ncolhteraliu d

Cash

Such custodial credit risk loss was recorded on the basic financial statements of fiscal year 2015.

Accordingly, that cash is no longer recorded in FIGNA's basic financial statements.

FIGNA maintains cash balances at a local bank. Accounts maintained in this institution are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Total uninsured balance as ofJune 30, 2019

amounted to approximately $7.2 million. Management believes that credit risk is minimal, FIGNA has not
experienced any loss in connection with these bank deposits.

$ 7,853592 $ 8,021315 $ 137332
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6. ACCOTJNTSRECETVABLE

As ofJune 30, 2019, FIGNA had the following accounts receivable:

Operatbnal Annuites

Fund Fund

Educational

Fund Total

$ 450,000

5,244

Concessbnaire

Rent

Other

$ 171,000 $ 234,000 $ 45,000

5,2M

7.

ll lll
72 569 l5

DIIE FROIWDI,]E TO OTIIERFTJNDS

Amouts dre fron/due to (interfrmd bahrces) as of June 30, 2019 between tlre govemmental fiIrds and the
proprbtary fimd b as folbws:

Receiveble Purpos e

Amuitbs
Annuitbs

Edratirnal

Annuities

Educatbnal

Operatbnal
Edrcati:nal
Operatimal

Operatioul
Operational

Amount

I

8,805363

356592

Advance of filrds
Adyance of fimds
Adrrance of fimds

$

II$

I

The sunmrary of interfird transfers for tle year ended Jrme 3O 2019 is as folbws:

Transftr out Trensftr in Purpose Amount

Purchase of hnd
Purchase of land

s 66754s
I

$

8. IITVESTMENTS

FIGNA is authorized to invest a percentage oftotal assets ofthe proprieary firnd, with certain limitations, in
the following types of investnents: not less thra 20% and no more than 80% in Treasury obligation and

agencies obligations of United States and Puerto Rico. No more than 30lo in mortgage securities and no more

than 15% in equig securities and asserbacked securities.

Investnents securities should be rated at a minimum grade ofBaa2lBBB or better by Standard & Poor's. At
June 30, 2019, FIGNA was not in compliance with certain ofthese requirements.

22



Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

As ofJune 30, 2019, the summary of the investnents held by FIGNA and their maturity is as follows:

After o€ to After five to After
frve ),ears ten ),ears tEn Years Totrl

PR Aquedrt and Sewer Anhority Bcnds

PR Pnbtc Bllildlngs Antority Bonds
PR Sabs Tax Finarcing Corporatbn Bsds
Certificates of Deposit
Total

PR Aqueduct and Sewer Authmity Bonds
PR Publb BuiHings Aldtcity Bonds
PR Sabs Tax Financing Corporatbn B@ds
Certificates orf Deposit
Total

PR Aquedrct and Sewer Authaiy Bonds

PR Pubh Buildings Authtrity Bmds
PR Sales Tax Financing Ccporatim Bonds

Total

$ $

Original
Cost

t@,il

$ 2,ffi,750
lrJT'nf0
6i49,nt

s 2@:r5o
ltJ7s,m
6J59,45

III
4
4

t4

The following is a summary of investrrents showing their original cost, change in fair value and carrying
amount as ofJune 30,2019:

$ 3,021504
15,(m,(m
6,00rfig

Chanee in
Fair Vahre

$ (382,754)
(32-?5,00.2)

7s7967

Carrying
Amount

s 2,ffi,7s0
rtJ75,m
6J59,4s

t4

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investnent will not fulIill its obligations. As
ofJune 30, 2019, FIGNA's Investrnents, except Certificates ofDeposits, are all rated CCC or lower.

At June 30, 2019, fair value of investrnents based on the hierarchy ofinputs are determined as follows:

kvel l l-evel? kvel3 Total

I t4

$ $ 2,ffi:750 $

1lls,000
6:1s9,45

-!-ry-

$ 2,ffiJso
1t37sJ[o

2 195$

Custodial credit risk related investuents are the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a

hansaction, FIGNA may not be able to recov€f, the value of the investnent or collateral securities that are in
the possession ofan outside party. At June 30, 2019, FIGNA's Invesfinents arc held in custody by the trust

department of a commercial bank in the name of FIGNA.
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9. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for lhe year ended Jrme 30, 2019, was as follows:

&lance
July l, 2018 Additkrns

Capital assets non-deprec iabb:

knd used h operations or based

Iand held for fuhue dwelopment

Total

Capital assets depreciabb:

B.rfiings, improvements and rights to use

Equbmenh

Vehicb

Total

Less accumuhted depreciatbn

Total

Capital assets, net

21,233,918 303,092

(13,t32,298) (1,234,46s)

8,101,620 (931,373)

$ 6,586,857

1,300,000

7,886,857

19,145,tt5

2,050,915

$ 1,000,000 $

Retirements Jrme

&hnce
2019

$ 7,586,857

8,886,857

19,322,585

2,177,307

37 I l8
21,537,0t0

(t4,366,7 63)

1,000,000

176,700

126,392

r 8

I 7

$l $ $ $l 104

Righ$ lo use

Rights to use consists of certain facilities owDed by the Puerto Rico National Guard to o,perate military stores,
canteen and other similar services. The terms ofthe licenses expire in September 30, 2054.

On November 16, 2018, FIGNA acquired land, in Sau Juan, Puerto Rico from the Govemment Dwelopment
Bank for Puerto Rico for $ I ,000,000. The land acquired houses the headquarters of the Puerto Rico National
Guard.

10. MILITARYCONTRIBUTIONS

FIGNA Annuities Fund receives monthly contributions of $5 from each active member of the l\r€rto Rico
National Guard who decides to emoll in the program. Military contributions recorded in the accompanying

basic financial sotements amountEd to $2,t0,710 for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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11. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

The activity for compensated absences, included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities of the
operational fimd during the year ended June 30, 2019, is as follows:

Beginig
Bahnce Addnbos Redrctbos

Eoding

Bahlrce

Vacatim $ l6sl ls$ $

12. RETIREMENTPLAN

The Defined Benefit Pension Plan for Participants ofthe Employees' Retirement System ofthe Govemment
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth) (the Plan) was created pursuant to Act No. rg7
on May 15, 1951, as amended (Act No. ,147) to provide pension and other benefits to retired employees of
the Commonwealth, its public corporations and mrmicipalities. Prior to the effect of Act No. 106 of August
23,2017 (Act No. 106-2017) the Plan was administered by the Employees' Retirement System of the
Govemment of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the System). Effective Jru/.y 1,2017, all employer
contributions were eliminatEd pursuant to Act No. 106-2017 and the Commonwealth implemented a "pay-as-
you-go" (PayGo) system for the payment of pensions. Also pursuant to Act No. 106-2017, the System was
required to liquidate its assets and transfer the net proceeds to the Department of Treasury of the
Commonwealth to pay pansion benefits.

As a result ofthe implernentation ofthe PayGo system, the Plan does not meet the criteria in paragraph 4 of
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.68, Accotmting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, to be considered a plan that is administered through a trust or equivalent arrangement and,
therefore, is required to apply the guidance in GASB StatementNo. T3, Accotmting and Financial Reporting

for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, a d Amendmerrts to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 ond 68. Under the guidance of GASB Statement No. 73, the
Commonwealth and its componeot units are considered to be one e,mployer, and are classified for financial
reporting purposes as a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. Therefore, the accompanfng schedule
of employer allocations and the schedule of pension amounts by employer (collectively, the Schedules)
present the pension amounB attributable to the Commonwealth reporting entity (i.e., the Commonwealth and
its component units).

Pension benelits

The benefits provided to the Plan participants are established by Commonwealth law and may be amended
only by the Legislature with the Govemor's approval, or by court decision.
Certain plan provisions are different for the three groups of members who entered the Plan prior to July l,
2013 as described below:

Members of Act No. 447 te genenlly those members hired before April l, 1990 (contributory,

defined benefit program).

Members of Act No. I of February 16, 1990 (Act No. 1) are generally those members hired on or
after April 1, 1990 and on or before Decemb€r 31, 1999 (contributory, defined beneftt program).

Membets of Act No. 305 of Septemb€r 24, 1999 (Act No. 305 or System 2000) are generally those

members hired on or after January l, 2000 and on or before June 30, 2013 (defined contribution
program). 

2s
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All regular employees hired for the first time on or after July l, 2013, and former employees who participated
in the defined benefit program and the System 20fi) program, and were rehired on or after July 1,2013,
become members of the Contributory Hybrid Program as a condition to their employmenl In additio4
employees who at June 30,2013, were participants of previous programs became part of the Contributory
Hybrid Program on July 1, 2013. Also, Act No. 3 of April 4, 2013 (Act No. 3 of2013) froze all retirement
b€nefits accrued through June 30, 2013 under the defined benefit program and, thereafter, all future benefits
accrued under the defined conhibution formula used for the System 2000 prcgram participants.

(a) Senfun Retircment Efigibitily Rcqfircnefis

(l) Eligibility for Act No. 447 trIembers - Act No. 447 membos who were eligible io retire as of June
30, 2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to July l, 2013, Act No. 447 mernbers
could retire upon (l) attainment ofage 55 with 25 years ofcredited service, (2) attainment ofage 58
with l0 yean of credited serice, (3) any age with 30 years ofcredited service, (4) for Public Offrcers
in High Risk Positions (the Commonwealth Police and Firefighter Corps, the Municipal Police and
Firefighter Corps and the Custody Office Corps), attainme of age 50 with 25 years of credited
service, and (5), for IVlayors of municipalities, attainment of age 50 with 8 years of credited service
as a Mayor. In addition, Act No. 447 members who attained 30 years ofcredited service by December
3 I , 20 I 3 are eligible to retire at any time.

Act No. 447 members who were not eligible to retfue as ofJune 30, 2013 and did not attain 30 years
ofcredited service by December 31, 2013 are eligible to retire with l0 years ofcredited service upon
attainment of the retirement eligibility age shown in the table below.

Date of birth

Attained age

as of
June 30, 2013

Retirernent

elislility am

July 1, 1957 or hter
July l, 1956 to June 30, 1957

Before July I, 1956

55 or less

56

57 and up

6t
60

59

In addition to the requirements of the table above, Act No. ,147 Public Olficers in High fusk Positions who
were not eligible to retire as of June 30, 2013 and did not attain 30 years ofcredited service by December 31,
2013, are eligible to retire direcdy from active service upon the attainment ofage 55 with 30 years ofcredit€d
service.

(2) Eligibility for Act No. I Members - Act No. I members who were eligible to retire as of Jue 30,
2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to July 1, 2013, Act No. I members could
retire upon (1) attainm€nt of age 55 with 25 years of credited service, (2) aftainment of age 65 with
I 0 years of credited service, (3) for Public Officers in High Risk Positions, any age with 30 years of
credited sewice, and (4) for Mayors, attainment of age 50 with E years of uedited service as a Mayor.

Act No. I members who were not eligible to retire as of June 30,2013 are eligible to retire uPon

attainment ofage 65 with 10 years ofcredited service. In addition, Act No. I Public Officen in High
Risk Positions who were not eligible to retirc as of June 30, 2013 ue eligible to retire direcdy from
active service upon the attainment ofage 55 with 30 years ofcredited s€rvice.
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(3) Eligibility for System 2000 Members - System 2000 members who were eligible to retire as ofJune
30, 2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to July l, 2013, System 2fi)0 members
could retire upon attainment of age 55 for Public Offrcers in High Risk Positions and attainment of
age 60 otherwise.

System 2000 memben who were not eligible to retire as ofJune 30, 2013 are eligible to retire upon
aftainment of age 55 for Public Officers in High Risk Positions and upon attainment ofthe retirement
eligibility age shown in the table below otherwise.

Date of birttr

Attained age

as of
June 30, 2013

Retirement

July l, 1957 or later

July l, 1956 to June 30, 1957

July l, 1955 to June 30, 1956

July 1, 1954 to June 30, 1955

Before July 1, 1954

55 or less

56

57

58

59 and up

65
g
63

62
6l

(4) Eligibility for Menbers Hired Ster June 30, 2013 - Attahtment of age 58 if a Public Officer in a High
fusk Position and attainment of age 67 otherwise.

(b) Conpalsory Relirencnl

All Act No. 447 and Act No. I Public Officers in High Risk Positions must retire upon attaiDment of age
58 and 30 years of credited service. A two-year ext€osion may be requested by the member from the
Superintendent of the Puerto Rico Police, the Chief ofthe Firefighter Corps, or supervising authority as
applicable.

(c) Sewice Rabemen, Annuily Benefia

An annuity payable for the lifetime of the member equal to the annuitized value of the balance in the
Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account at the time of retircment, plus, for Act No. rl47 and
Act No. 1 members, the accrued benefit determined as of June 30, 2013. If the balance in the Defined
Conhibution Hybrid Contribution Account is $10,000 or less, it shall be paid as a lump sum instead ofas
an annuity. For System 2000 participants this service retirement annuity benefit is not available.

(l) Accrued Benefit as ofJune 30, 2013 for Act No. 447 lrilembers - Tt.e accrued benefit as of June 30,

2013 shall be determined based on the average compensation, as defined, for Act No. tl47 members,

the years ofcredited service, and the attained age ofthe member all as ofJune 30, 2013. For Act No.
447 Mayors, the highest compensation, as defined, as a Mayor is determined as ofJune 30, 2013.

If the Act No.,l47 member had at least 30 years ofcredited service as ofJune 30,2013, the accnred

benefit equals 65% ofaverage compensation if the mernber was under age 55 as ofJune 30, 2013 or
75olo of sverage compensation ifthe mfilber was at least age 55 as ofJune 30, 2013. For participants

selecting to coordinat€ with social security (the Coordination Plan), the benefit is re-calculated at the

Sotcial Security R*irunent Age (SSRA), as defind as l'5% ofaverage compensation up to $5,600
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multiplied by years ofcredited service, up to 30 years, plus 650/o (75Vo if rner rcr was at least age 55
as ofJune 30,2013) ofaverage compensation in excess of$6,600.

Ifthe Act No. 447 mernber had less than 30 years ofcredited service as ofJune 30, 2013, and attains
30 years of credited service by December 31,2013, the accrued benefit equals 55o/o of werage
compensation if the member was under age 55 as ofJune 30, 2013 or 60% of average compensation
if the member was at least age 55 as of June 30,2013. For participants selecting the Coordination
Plan, the benefrt is re-calculated at SSRA as L5olo of average compensation up to $6,600 multiplied
by years ofcredited service, up to 30 years, plus 55% (600lo ifmember was at least age 55 as ofJune
30, 2013) of average compe$ation in excess of $6,6(X). Member connibutions received from Act
No. tl47 members eligible for this transitory beoefit dring the period beginning luly l, 2013 and
ending upon the attainment of 30 years of credited service are considered pre-July l, 2013
contributions; the conhibutions to the Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account begin after
the member attains 30 years of credited service.

If the Act No. 447 member had less than 30 years of credited service as of December 31, 2013, the
accrued benefit equals 1.50l, of average compensation multiplied by years of credited service up to
20 years, plus 2olo of average compensation multiplied by years of credited service in excess of20
years. Maximum benefit is 75Yo of avauge compensation. Except for Commonwealth Police and
Commonwealth Firefighters, the benefit is actuarially reduced for each year pa)mrcnt commences
prior to age 58. For padicipants selecting the Coordination Plan, the basic benefit is re-calculated at
SSRA as I o/o of average compensation up to $6,600 multiplied by years of credited service up to 20
years, plus l.5o/o of average compensation up to $6,600 multiplied by years of credircd service in
excess of 20 years, plus L5% of average compensation in excess of $6,600 multiplied by years of
credited service up to 20 years, plus 2.0o/o of avtrge compensation in excess of $6,600 multiplied
by years of credited service in excess of 20 years. Except for Police and Firefighten, the benefit is
actuarially reduced for each year payment commences prior to age 58.

For Act No. 447 Mayors with at least 8 years of credited service as a mayor, the accrued benefit will
not be less than 5% ofhighest compensation, as defined, as a Mayor for each year ofcredited service
as a Mayor up to l0 years, plus 1.5% ofhighest compensation as Mayor for eachyear ofuon-Mayoral
credited service up to 20 years, plus 2.0% of highest compensation as Mayor for each year of non-
Mayoral credited service in excess of20 years. Non-Mayoral credited service includes service eamed

as a Mayor in excess of l0 years. Maximum benefit is 90% ofhighest compensation as a }vlayor.

(2) Accnted Benelit as of June 30, 2013 for Act No. I lvlemben -T\e accrued beirefit as of Juue 30,
20 1 3 shall be determined based on the average compensation for Act No. 1 members, the years of
credited service, and the attained age ofthe member all as of June 30, 2013.

For Act No. I Mayors, the highest compensation as a Mayor is determined as of June 30, 20 I 3 .

If the Act No. 1 member is a police officer or frefighter with at least 30 years of credited service as

of Jrme 30, 2013, the accrued benefit equals 650lo of average compensation if the member was under

age 55 as ofJune 30,2013 or 75Vo of average compensation ifthe member was at least age 55 as of
June 30, 2013.
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For all other ActNo. I members, the accrued benefit equals l.5olo ofaverage compensation multiplied
by years of credited service. The benefit is actuarially reduced for each year pqment comrnences
prior to age 65.

For Act No. l, Mayors with at least 8 years of credircd service as a Mayor, the accrued benefit will
not be less than 5olo ofhighest compensation as a Mayor for each year ofcredited service as a Mayor
up to l0 years, plus 1.5% of highest compensation as Ilfayor for each year of non-Mayoral credited
service up to 20 years, plus 2.0/o of highest compensatiotr as Mayor for each year of non-Mayoral
credited service in excess of 20 years. Non-Mayoral credited s€rvice includes service earned as a
Mayor in excess of l0 years. Maximum benefit is 90% ofhighest compensation as a Mayor.

(d) Special Benefits

(1) Minimum Benefits

Past Ad hoc Increases

The legislature, from time to time, increases pensions for certain retirees as described in Act
No. 124 approved on June 8, 1973 and Act No. 23 approved on September 23,1983.

Minimum Benefits for Members who Retired before July l, 2013 (Act No. 156 of 20(M, Act
No. 35 of2007, and Act No. 3 of20l3).

The minimum monthly lifetime income for members who retired or become disabled before
July 1, 2013 is $500 per month effective July l, 2013 ($400 per month effective July l, 2007
and $300 per month up to June 30, 2007).

Coordination Plan Minimum Benefit

A minimum monthly benefit is payable upon attainment of SSRA such that the benefit, when
added to the Social Security Benefit, is not less than the benefit payable prior to SSRA.

(2) Cost-of-Living Adjustnents (COLA) to Pension Benefits

The Legislature, from time to time, increased pensions by 3% for retired and disabled members.
Beneficiaries are not entided to COLAS granted after the retiree's death. The fust increase was
granted by Act No. 10 of 1992. Subsequent 3% increases have been granted wery third year since
I 992, with the latest 3olo increase established on April 24, 2007 and effective July I , 2007 (reroactive
to Jaauary 1, 2007) for retired and disabled members that were receiving a monthly benefit on or
before January l, 2004 (Act No. 35 of 2007). In addition, effective July 1, 2008, any retired or
disabledmemberthatwasreceivinga.monthlyamuityonorhforeJanuaryl,20(Xlessthen$1,250.
per month received an increase ofup to 3% without exceeding the limit of$1,250 per month (Act
No. 35 of2007).
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(3) Special "Bonus" Benefits

Christnas Bonus (Act No. lrg, as Amended by Act No. 3)

An annual bonus of $2ffi for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabled member paid in
December provided the member retired prior to July l, 2013.

Medication Bonus (Act No. 155, as Amended by Act No. 3)
An annual bonus of $100 for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabled member to cover health
costs paid in July provided the member retirpd prior to July 1, 2013. Evidence ofcoverage is
not r€quired. The amount is prorated ifthere are multiple beneficiaries.

FIGNA's proportion ofthe totrl pension liability ofthe Retiremetrt Pl.tr rnd Acturrirl Informrtion

FIGNA's proportionate share of the total pension liability of the Retircrnent Plan and the proportion
percetrtage of the aggregate net pension liability of the Retircm€ot Plan allocated to FIGNA as of June 30,
2019 amoutrted to $844,938 and 0.00345%, respectively. The Commonwealth's total pension liability, from
which an allocation was made to FIGNA's financial statements as of June 30,2019, was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July l, 2017, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2018 (measurrment &te as of
June 30,2018).

(a) Actuarial Methods and Assutttptions

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measurcment
period.

Discomt Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2018 was 3.87%. This represents the municipal bond retum rate as chosen
by the Commonwealth. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exerrpt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating ofAA./Aa or higher.

Mortality

The mortality tables used in the June 30, 2018 acoarial valuation were as follows:

- Pre-retiremerrt Mortalily

For general employees not covered rmder Act No. 127, RP-2014 Employee Mortality Rates for males

and females adjusted to reflect Mortality Improvernent Scale MP-2018 from the 2fi)6 base year and
projected forward using MP-20 I 8 on a generational basis. For mernbers covered under Act No. I 27,

RP-2014 Employee Mortality Rates are assumed with blue collar adjustuents for males aud adjusted

to r€flect Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2018 from the 2006 base year and projected forward
using MP-2018 on a genemtional basis. As geoerational tables, they reflect mortality improvements
both before and after the measurerrent date.

l00o/o of deaths while in active service are assumed to be occupational for members covered under

Act 127 .
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- Post-retirement Healthy Monality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for healthy r*irees and beneficiaries based on a study of the
Plan's experience from 2007 to 2012 and updated expectations regarding future mortality

The 2010 base rates are equal to 92% of the rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table
for Males and 95% ofthe rates from the [JP-1994 Mortality Table for Females, both projected fiom
1994 to 2010 using Scale AA. The base rates are p,rojected using Mortality knprovement Scale MP-
2018 on a generational basis. As a generational table, it reflects mortality improvements both before
and after the measurement date.

- P ost-retirement Disabled Mortality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for disabled retirees based on a study ofthe Plan's experience
from 2007 to 2012 and updated expectations regarding future mortality improvement. The 20 I 0 base
rates are equal to 105% of the rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table for Males and l15% of the
rates from the UP-1994 Morality Table for Females. The base rates are projected using Mortality
Improvernent Scale MP-2018 on a generational basis. As a generational table, it refl€cts mortality
improvernents both before and after the measuemetrt date.

Other Assumptiots as ofJune 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method
Inflation rate
Salary increases

Entry age normal
Not applicable
3 .fi)o/o per year. No compensation increases are assumed until
lrd.y 1,2021 as a result ofAct No. 3-2017, four-year extension of Act
No.66-2014, and the current general €conomy.

(b) SensilW of the Toul Pension Liabilig to Chonges in lhe Discount Rate

The following presents the total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of3.87ol0, as well as what
it would be if it were calculated using the discount rate of I -percentage point lower (2.87o/o) or I -percentage-
point higher (4.877o) than the current rate (dollars in thousands):

l% Decrease Currelt Discount

Q.87Vl Rate (3.877o)

l% Increase

(4.87o/o)

FIGNIIIs proportbnate share

ofnet pemsbn liability

Pension erpense and Dderred OuffIows of Resources rnd Deferred Inflowc of R$ourcet

Pension expense recopized by FIGNA for the year ended June 30, 2019 related to the Retirement System

resulted in a benefit amounting to $345,550, which has been included as part of administative expenses in
the accompanying statem€r ofrevenues, expenses and changes in net position.
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The following presents a summaqr of changes in the deferred oufflows ofresources and deferred inflows of
resources (excluding employer specific amounts) for the year ended June 30, 20 I 9:

Difference between expected and actual experieme
Changes in assunptions
Changes in enployer proportion
Benefits paid after measu€rEnt date

Jrme

2U20

202t
2022

m23
2U24

s

Deferred
outflows of
resources

24956

Amormt

5,62
5,62
5,662

5,62

Deferred
inflows of
rcsources

0

$5

25,555
27,707

$

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resourses and defered inflows ofresowces (excluding errployer
specific amounts) related o pensions at June 30, 2019 will be recognized in pension expense (benefit) in
future years as follows:

Years ending

$

I
_CI_28,30e_

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows and deferred inllows ofresources
related changes in proportion. Thes€ amou s should be recognized (amortized) by each employer over the
average ofthe expected remaining service lives ofall plan members, which is six (6) years for 2018.

13. CONCESSIONAGREEMENT

Effective July l, 2017, FIGNA entered in a contract with Castro Business Enterprise, Inc. (the

"Concessionaire") to operate FIGNA's military stores up to June 30,2021. On June 30,2021, the contact
was extended for an additional year. The concessionaire shall provide service to all members ofthe military
forces ofPuerto Rico as defined in section 2914 of FIGNA's Act of 1991, as amended. Under this agreement,
the concessionaire makes a montlly payment amounting to M50,000 and is responsible for capital
improvemenb to the stores and for the payment of store expenses such as utilities, security and maintenance

among others.
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(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

14. RENTALREVENI]E

FIGNA leases, as lessor, commercial spaces located in various places in Puerto Rico tlrough operating lease
contracts which expire in various dates until April 202. During the year ended June 30, 2019, FIGNA eamed
$813,887 in rental income from all leases.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rentals on noncancelable operating leases as ofJune 30, 2019:
Years ending

Jrme Anortr
$ 678,434

a7,w
593,m4
575,W

170

2020
2W
m22
2023

202/+

0 6

15. CONTINGENCIESAI\IDRISKMANAGEI}IENT

Contingent Liabilities

FIGNA is a defendant or co-defendant in various other lawsuits in the normal course of operations. Some
claims have been brought against FIGNA by employees and others. Based on the opinion of legal counsel,
managem€nt has concluded that no reserves are required in relation to these cases as ofJune 30, 2019.

Risk ldanagement

FIGNA is exposed to various risks ofloss from torb, theft of d"mxgs to, and destruction of assets, extra
expense, erors and omissions, employee iqjuries and illnesses, natural disasters, and other losses.
Commercial insurance coverage is obtained for claims arising from such matters. The commercial insurance
coverage and premium are negotiated by the Corporation and the Treasury Department. The cost is paid by
the Treasury De?artment and reimbursed by the Corporation-

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instuments that potentially subject FIGNA to concenhation of credit risk consist of accounts
receivable aod due from govemmental entities. Accounts receivable and due from govemmental entities are
due from customers, municipalities and govemmental insrumentalities mainly located in Puerto Rico.
FIGNA generally does not require collateral and credit losses are provided for periodically through the
allori,ance for doubtfi accoults. FIGNA routinely assesses the financial shength of its customers to reduce
its exposure to potential credit losses,

16. SI'BSEQIJENTEYENTS

FIGNA evaluated subsequ€nt events until August 27, 2021, the date the frnancial statements were available

to be issued. Except as discussed below and Note 4, no events have occurred subsequent to the statement of
net position date and though the date the financial statements were available to be issued, that would require

additional adjustmeot to, or disclosure in the basic financial statements.
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During the fiscal year ended on June 30,2018, FIGNA submitted a claim to FINRA for realiz6( afi
urrealized losses on its invesment portfolio which managemedt believed were caused by ib investuent
manager. On August 2019, FIGNA and its invesnnent manager reached a settlement whereby FIGNA
received approximately $2.0 millioq which consists of$2.8 million total setflement less $.8 million oflegal
expeNes.

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease COMD-I9 a global
pandemic. This highly contagious disease has spread across the world and into Puerto Rico and has resulted
in local government enforced business lockdowns and curfews on non-esseirtial services, as well as other
restrictions on social, govemmental, and business activities involving large numbers of individuals and/or
padicipants. At the date of issuance of the financial staternents, the duration of the aforementioned
exceptional measures and the effects that they may have on the financial situation, the result ofthe operations
and cash flows ofFIGNA are unknown.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Insfuwional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Re qu i r e d Sup p I e me nt al Inform at i on
Schedule of Proportiondte Share of the Collective Total Pension Liability
June 30, 2019

Proportion (percentage) of the net collective

trotal pension liability

Proportion (amount) of the net collective
total pension liability

Covered - Employee Payroll

Proportionate Share of Total Pmsion Liability

GASB 73 GASB 68

m79 2!r8 2077 2076 2015

0.00345% 0.m391% 0.@282% 0.W27VL 0.m259%
F::

5v.@% w.74% 6n1t% 582.94% 493.&%

$ 844938 $ r.336,384 $ 1,064E60 $ 922212 $ 780,6s3

$ 158,200 $ 158,200 $ 1s&200 $ 1s8200 $ 158200

Noter to Required Supplementary Infomration

1. As a result of the implemmtation of the Payco system, a6 provided by Act No. 105 of 20U (Act 106), the Pmsion Plan no

longer met the criteria to be considerEd a plan that is administered through a hust or equivalmt arrangemmt under GASB

68 and, therefore, was required to apply the $idanct in GASB 73 effective fuly 1, 2018. Act 106 eliminated all employer

contributions and rcquired ERS to liquidale its ass€ts and to tsansfer the proceeds to the Commonwealth for the paymmt of
pension bmefis. Therefore, ttrere are no assets accumulated in a Trust to pay pension bmefits.

2. FIGNA's proportion of the total pension liability was actuarially determined based on the ratio of the FIGNiq(s bmefit
payments to the total benefit paymenb made by all participating employers under the Pmsion Ptan for the year mding on

the measuremert date.

3. The sctredule is intmded to show inforuration for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as the inlormation becomes

available.

4. The amounts presented were determined by an actuarial valuation as of ]uly 1, 2017 that was rolled forward to Iune 30,

201& the measul€mmt date.
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INDEPENDENT AIJDMORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
San Juan, Puerto Rico

Reoort on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business+ype activities and aggxegated remaining fund
information of the Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust (FIGNA by its Spanish acronym), a component unit
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, which compose the staternent of net position as of June 30, 2020 and the related
statement of rEvenues, exlrnses and changes in net position and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that arc
free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the UniM States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. those standards requir€ that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements arc free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risla of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. .In making those risk assossments,

the audiors consider intemal control relevant to the entity's prcpuation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriataness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

PO BOx 364152 San Juan, PR 00935-4152
f F A7l 725-4545 | F {7A71 7 64-o52a I galhdezlb.comta TRUST



To the Board of Directors of
Puerto Rico National Guad Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
San Juan, Pueno Rico
Page2

Galindez,.."

Ooinion

In our opinion, the Iinancial statements refemd to above present fairly, in all material respects, the finalcial position
of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the hreno Rico National Guard
Institutional Trust, as of June 30, 2020, and the related changes in its financial position and its casb flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emohasis of Matter

FIGNA's Ability to Continue as a Goins Concem

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that FIGNA will continue as a going concem.
As discussed in Note 3, the financial condition of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth) is an
extemal matter that may affect the ability of FIGNA to continue as a going concern.

FIGNA is a component unit of the Commonwealth, which along with most of its public corporations are in the midst
of a profound fiscal crisis. Despite various measures undertaken in recent years to stimulate economic gmwth, reduce
govemment expenses and incrcase revenues, the Commonwealth has been unable to spur economic growth and

eliminate the recurrent excess ofexpenditures over revenues.

On June 30, 2016, the Puerto Rico Oversight, Management, and Economic Stability Act, Pub. Law ll4-187
C'PROMESA" or the "Act"), was enacted into law. This Act establishes a Financial Oversight and Management
Board for Puerto Rico (he 'Oversight Board') to assist the Govemment of Puerto Rico, including its
instrumentalities, in managing its public finances and for other purposes.

On May 3, 2018, the Oversight Board, on behalf of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, filed a pelition for relief under
fitle III of PROMESA in the United States District Court for the District of Pueno Rico. Title Itr under PROMESA
provides for similar procedures to Chapter 9 and I I of the Federal Bankuptcy Code seeking an orderly restructuring
of the local public finances which includes a debt adjustment process under the supervision ofthe court.

On January 18, 2022, the Title Itr Court entercd an order approving the Commonwealth' Plan of Adjustment ("POA").
The POA reduces $33 billion in bond debt, cuts overall debt by 80% and saves Rrerto Rico more than $50 billion in
debt service payments. The Oversight Board will now determine an effective date for the POA, at which the
Commonwealth's prior debt will be restructured and creditors, public service union members, and others will receive
the cash payments agreed to under the POA. On January 27,2022,1he Ovetsight Board certi[red a new fiscal plan of
the Commonwealth which reflects the POA, rccent incrcases in federal funding, and Pueno Rico's economic recovery.
In February 2l , 2O22, the Oversight Board amended the Joint Resolution of the General Budget for fiscal y ear 2O22
to appropriate funds for the General Fund operating expenses and to enable the Department of Treasury to make
payments as set in the Plan of Adjustment.

TRUST,04
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To the Board of Directors of
Puerto Rico National Guad Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico)
San Juan, Puerto Rico
Page 3

4.r99:7i

San Juan Puerto Rico
March4,2O22
License No. LLC-322
Expires December l, 2023

Galindez.."

These conditions raise substantial doubts about the Commonwealth's, and therefore FIGNA's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time. The Common wealth's plans regarding these matters are also described
in Note 3. The financial staterrents do not include any adjustment that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not modified with rcspect to this matter.

Reouired Suoolementary lrformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 4 through 9 and the Schedule of Pmportionate Sharc of Net Pension Liability on page 35 be
prcsented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is requircd by $e Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial staEments in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not exprcss an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence or any assurance to express an opinion.

6o\{^ L LLC

TRUST"04



Paerto Rico National Guard Institational Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discassion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Introduction

Our discussion and analysis of the Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust's (FIGNA) financial performance
provides an overview of FIGNA's financial activities for the year ended June 30,2020. This discussion and analysis
was prepared by FIGNA's management and the readers are encouraged to review the financial statements and the
notes to the fmancial stat€rnents to enhance their understanding of FIGNA's financial performance.

The management's discussion and analysis is not a required part of the financial statements, but it is supplementary
information required by the govemmental accounting standards board. This supplementary information is the
responsibility of FIGNA's managemeot. The independent auditor has applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries to management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. therefore, the independent auditor did not audit such information and did not express an
opinion on it.

Financial Highlights

Total assets and defened outflow of resources at June 30,2020 amount€d to $61 million, reflecting an
increase of approximately $2.8 million from June 30, 2019.

The operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2020 amout€d to $6.4 million, a decrease of
approximately $13 thousand over the prior fiscal year. Operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2020
amounted to $6.0 million, a decrease of $204 thousand when compared to June 30, 2019. The nonoperating
revenues amounted to approximately $2.1 million at June 30, 2020 compared to non-operating revenues of
approximately $6.9 million in the prior year, reflecting a deoease of $4.9 million.

Net position increased approximat€ly $2.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2020.

n

o

o

Overview of The Finsnciel St.tements

FIGNA is a component unit ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico (hereinafter refened to as the Commonwealth) and
is presented in the Commonwealth's governmental-wide financial staternents as an enterprise fund.

This discussion and analysis is required supplernentary information to the basic financial statements and is intended
to serve as inaoduction to FIGNA's financial statements, which include: l) Statement ofnet position, 2) Statement of
revenues, expenses, and change in net positio4 3) Statement ofcash flows, and 4) Notes to financial statern€nts.

1) Statement ofNet Position - This statement presents information on all FIGNA's assets, defened outflow of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between, assets plus defened
outllow of resources, and, liabilities plus defenpd inflow of resources, reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in FIGNA's net position may serve as a useful indicator ofwhether its financial position
is improving or deteriorating.

2) Stetemetrt of Revenues, Erpenses and Changes ir Net Pocition - This statement presents infonnation
showing how FIGNA'S net position changed during the nost recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are r€ported as soon as the underlying eveot giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reporied in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Instilutianal Trusl
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discassion qnd Analysis (Unoudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

3) Statement of Cash Flows - This statenent present infomation related to cash flows of FIGNA by the
following categories: operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing
activities and investing activities. This statement also portrays the health of FIGNA as cunent cash flows are
sufficient to pay current liabilities.

4) Notes to Fitrrncial Stat€ments - The not€s to financial statexnents are an integral part of the basic financial
statements and describe the significant accounting policies, related-party transactions, deposits, investnents,
capital assets, long-term liabilities, defrned-benefrt pension plan, the commituents and contingencies. The
reader is encouraged to review the notes in conjrmction with the management discussion and analysis and the
financial statements.

FIGNA uses fund accounting to help ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. The
firnds ofFIGNA are as follows:

Proprietary firnd - this firnd is used to show activities that opoate more like those of commocial enterprises.
Because these firnds charge fees for services provided to outside customers they are known as enterprise
funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation as the governmetrt-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting. The
following is a brief description of FIGNA's proprietary funds:

Operational funds - 4s961D1s fs14ll financial resources not required to be accounted in another fund.
Primary sources of revenues consist of 38olo of the concession revenues, rental income and interest
on investuents.

Annuities fund - accounts for three benefits programs: l) annuities 2) life insurance 3) funeral
insru:ance. himary sources of revenues consist of 52olo of the concession revenues and interest on
investnents.

Educational fund - accounts for financial resources provided to help cover educational expenses.
Primary sources ofrevenues consist of l0lo ofthe concession revenues and intercst on investnents.

Mrjor Financial Elements

Revenues

FIGNA's revenues are principally derived from concession royalties received under an agreement to operate miliary
stores, and interest income from invesbnents, which are distributed to FIGNA's three major firrls: l) Operational
Fund, 2) Annuities Fund, and 3) Educational Fund. The funds were established by Act No. 23 of July 23, 1991. In
addition, the Annuities Fund, receives the Puerto Rico National Guard members' contributions, to offset, on a limited
basis, the cost ofbenefits.
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Puerto Rtco National Gaard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commomveakh Puerto Rico)
Management's Discassion and Analysis (Unaudiled)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Expenses and Capital Outlays

Expenses consist principally ofbenefits paid to the members of the Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust.
Including payment ofeducation expenses, temporary assistance to retired mernbers, life and funeral benefits, among
other services. Also, includes, administrative expenses like salaries, energy costs, repair and maintenance (of
FIGNA's facilities) and professional fees. Furthermore, at times, FIGNA defray the cost of certain repair and

maintenance performed to the property ofthe National Guard ofPuerto Rico.

Finrncial Analysis of FIGNA's Business-Type Activities

The following table presents & summary of FIGNA's net position at June 30 ,2020 ard2}19:

2020 2019
Assets:

Current assets

Non-cuaent assets

Capital assets I 7 104

$ 12,957,362
32,475,449
15,486,368

9t9 179

95,032

$ 8,737,26s
33,175,209

I 4,220,097
(699,760)
(570,736',1

57,969,578

289,778 (194,7461

949) ITotal assets

Deferred outflows ofresource from pension activities

Liabilitbs:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total lbbiliries

Deferred infbws of resource from pension activitbs

Net position:
Invested in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted position

Total net position

1,930,398
862,429

827

535

1,701,335

938

2,s46,273

53,262

229,063
t7 I

15,486,368
37,719,732

749

t6,o57,tM
35,792,782

935

821

554

72

(570,736)
1,926,950
I,153,814

51

t! I I B

The Statements ofNet Position presents FIGNA's assets, deferred outflow ofresources, liabilities and deferred inllows
of resources, with the difference between, assets plus deferred outflow of resources, and, liabilities plus deferred
inflow ofresources, reported as net position, excluding the balance due betrreen firnds, which are considered intemal
balances that have been eliminated in the Statement ofNet Position. The net position is reported in three categories:
investnent in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted and uffestricted net position. Restricted net position may
either be expendable or nonexpendable and are those assets that are restricted by law or by an external donor.
Unrestricted net position often has consraints on resources imposed by management, which can be removed or
modified.

-6-



Puefio Rico National Gaard Instilutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discassion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

The Statement of Net Position is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized
when the service is provided by and expenses are recognized when others provide the service to FIGNA, regardless
ofwhen cash is exchanged. Assets and liabilities included in the Statements ofNet Position are classified as current
or noncurrent. FIGNA's cash outlays for capital assets, are not expenses, and therefore are capitalized as incurred.

Current assets - FIGNA's curent assets increased by S4.2 million in June 30,2020 from June 30, 2019. Such
increase was mainly due to increase in cash of$3.1 million and the increase in accounts receivable of$1 million.
Increase in cash was mainly the result of the $2 million litigation settlement. lncrease in accounts receivable is the
result ofdelays in collections due to the COVID-l9 pandemic.

Crpitrl ssseh - FIGNA's capital assets deueased from $16.1 million at June 30, 2019, to $15.5 million at June 30,
2020. Change was due to depreciation expense amounting to $600 thousand offset by capital expenditures amounting
to $200 thousand.

Non-current $sets - FIGNA's invesfinents consist ofmunicipal bonds issued by the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico,
or r€lated agencies, and deposits. FIGNA's invesunents are reported at fair value in the statement of net position.
FIGNA's total investnents decreased ftom $33.2 million at June 30, 2019, to $32.5 million at June 30, 2020. The
decrease is mainly athibutable to the change in fair value. During the year 2020, FIGNA received approximately $.8
million by concept ofinterest.

Current liabilities - Current liabilities consist ofaccounts payable and accrued liabilities. Current liabilities reflected
an increase of approximately $229 thousand from $1.7 million at June 30, 2019 to $1.9 million at June 30, 2020.

Net position - Net position represents the residual interest in FIGNA's assets and deferred outflow of resources after,
liabilities plus defored inflow of resources, are deducted. FIGNA s net position increased approximately by $2.5
million at June 30, 2020. The increase in net position was mainly due to the litigation settlement which amormted to
approximately $2 million.

This space has been intentionally lelt in bla*
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Puerto Rico National Guard Instilulional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discassion and Analysis (Unrudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

STAITMENT OF REVENI'IES, EXPENSES AIID CHAIIGES IN IIET POSITION - PROPRJDTARY
FIJNDS

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position - proprietary funds show the sources of FIGNA's
changes in net position as they arise through its various programs and firnctions. A cq1den56d snmmery ofrevenues,
expenses and changes in net position for the fiscal years ended Jrme 30, 2020 ad 2019 is shown in the following
table:

2020 2019

Operating revenues:

Concessionaire royafties
Rental income
Military contributions
Other

Total revenues

Operating eryenses:

Administratbn
Distributed benefits

Total operating e:penses

Operating income

Non operating revenues

Increase in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end ofyear

$ 5,400,000 s
813,887
u0,710

s 5,400,m0
795,811
243,773

684

3,285,743
2,696,474

3,25t,398
2,935,066

34,345

Q38,592')

8,

3,

(l 076)
063

060I I

6,442,268 6,455,657 (13,389)

460,051 269,193

939 623

5,982,217 (204,U1',)

190,858

(4,889,646)

(4,698,788)

977

5l 816028 7

55 65 821

169 849 $ 55 659

816

028

I 005 7

821 $$ I

The Condensed Staternents ofRwenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, presents FIGNA's operations results
based on operating rwenues, less operating expenses, plus non-operating revenues.

Operating Revenues - FIGNA's operating revenues for the year ended June 30,2020 werc in line with operating
revenues for the year ended June 30,2019. Approximately 84% of FIGNA's revenues for the year ended June 30,
2020 is from the royalties received from the concession agreement for the operations ofthe Duty-Free Shops located
at Fort Allen in Juana Diaz, San Juan, Cayey, Ceiba, Gurabo, Mayagilez, Arecibo and Vega Baja.

Opereting Expenses - FIGNA's total operating expenses rernained online with prior year decreasing by
approximately $200 thousand.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Institaional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudiled)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Non-Operating Revenues (Expensec) - For the year ended June 30, 2020, FIGNA reported non-operating revenues
of $2.1 millioq resulting primarily from the interest eamed from investnents amounting to approximately $800
thousand, litigation settlement amounting to approximarcly to $2 million offset by a change in fair value (decrease)
of investrnents amounting to approximately $700 thousand while in 2019 FIGNA reported a change in fair value
(decrease) of $6.2 million with $800 thousand in interest income.

Information request

This section ofthe Management's Discussion and Analysis is designed for anyone interested in obtaining an overview
ofthe finances ofFIGNA. Questions regarding information in this section should be ad&essed to Puerto Rico National
Guard Institutional Trust, Office ofthe Executive Director, PO Box 9023786, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 00902-3786.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fnds
June 30, 2020

Burirclr -Ihc Ac.tivideN . f,rt€rDdre htrd!
Opcnliod

hrd
Arrtltitr

htrd
Educrliord

Ilmd i firfiI,nt Totrl
A$rb

Cutt $$tl
Cilh atrd cash e4uivahnh

fucou s rEccivabh

InterEst rEcEivnblc

Due from othr flruls

Prlp8it grycnsrs

Totrl clrtl rrieh

Nomurr! A!$b
IDwsttrrnb

Capital sssets

Totd roicrrEnt alrat

LLbilili.t
CurEnt lisbilitbs:

Affounts psyabl€ Ed aocfld liabihls

Duc b olher fuods

Totd culttrt liririlitier

Nolcumrt Lirlrilitfor
Total pnsion liabrlty

Totrl lirhlitir!

lhflEd illlout of rcrouru totr peldor rdMal€!

Totrt lbbilitici rd defc[rd ilior! of ]tro[lu,

Mt Porition

IIvestDEtrt h c{pihl aer€b

Restbt€d for pslme ofb€oeffi
U estiH

$ 7,10E,609 $ 3,234,244 $ 665,428

7r9,E96 ',t36,W 135,000

62,115 85,000 16,346

- 9,313,926 t,093,74t

- $ 11,008,281

- 1,591,739

- 163,461

(10,407,667)

32,O5,449

r5,4t6,368

64,407 t29174 t93,881

7,955,027 t3,499A87 00,407,667) t\957,362

18,913,376 3,7t7,W 41,961,817

Tobl r$.b 33,215,625 32412,863 5,698,358 (10,407,667) 60,919,179

Irrfond o!(lotrB 0f nlomt litro pctrtloD &tlvltl6 95,032 95,032

Tohl ureh rd d.f.nd oftios! oI nroult r $ 33,310,657 S 32,{12,M3 $ 5,698,35t $ (10,407,667) $ 6l,0l4Jll

9,n4,230

15,486,368

25,260,598

$ 1,895,500

10,051,076

18,913,376 3,787,U3

$ $ 34,898

356,591 00,407,667)

$ 1,930,398

I1,946,576 391,489 00.407,667) 1,930,398

E62,429

12,t09,005

51.535

391,489 (10,407,667)

12,860,540 391,489 (10fi1,f67\

15,486,368

- 32112,U3 5,306,8A
4 q61 7{0

15,486,368

37,719,732

4,96t,749

58,169,9

2,792,827

2,W\A

Toal net poitin 20,450,117 32,412,t63 5,306,869

Totsl fiabilitir. defcrrEd hoows oftlsouws ud net posilhn $ 33,310,657 $ 32.4t2,863 $ s,698,358 $ (10,407,667)

Sce sccomporying mtss b basic fmmcial staEnEtrb
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Puerto Rico National Guard Institational Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commomtealth ofPuerto Rico)

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position - Proprielary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Buriretr-TvDe Acdvhler -Ert mdse Furds
Opcrrdond ArmuitieE

Futrd
Educrtiord

Furd Totrl
Opcrditrg ltveruer

Cmcessilaire rclabhs
Reftat ircone
Mfllary c@hlutl)trs
Other

Total operathg revenues

Operrtirg ErtrrctrsCr:

Admirirtntive crpemer
Pa),roll ad rehbd expeNes

Pensim expeue
DeFechtirn ad armrtizatbn

Professbul services

Udnix
Repais ad maio&mrce

Ofte rnteriab
Other a&[iobtrative expeBes

Bad debt e,een6e

Insurame

T&l sdmhbtrative expenses

Ilbtdbrted bcrcit!
Anmritbs expenses

Edaatbrul €rpellses

Life iNurance

CErleral benefts b the Puerto Rbo

Natinal Gurd and ie members

Tel dbEhrted benefts

Tel eeratiDg experses

OFrrainS lncome 0orr)
Non{eratiog rcvef,.Es (e4etrses):

hterest
Litig8tim settbrErt, net

Change i! fat vaiE ofinvestrEnb

Total rcn-opcrathg revEmles, Et

Net changes ir rEt po6itih

Net porilion, begining ofthe year

Net porition, end ofthe year

$ 2ps2w $

795,81I

243:t73

2,&4
2l50F9s 5,$,0m 6,42268

s81994

255592

812936

4n29s
w47s
3WA

40,029

&,191
48,000

80163

328sJ43

1318,450 1J18,450

280973

87,089

280973

87,089

rw962 1,w962
tw962 1,405539 2l,0973 2,ffi174

1,,10553e 230973 s9822t7

(1,44s210) 1s46234 2s99n 460,051

375,014

2,808,0m $ 540,0m $ 5,400,000

?95,81I

243:t73

z6u

581,994

2555n
812936

477 295

,475

382562

40p29

@,tn
48,m
m,663

309J78

l,9m,m0
(26t.290)

n9w 757,581

1,980,000

(68J60) (687,fi4)

4229 2W9n

2632s6 2510928

5,043,613 55559fi21

\fr28fi8

583,078

tewp39

17,ffi

t,663,694

30J49,t69

$ 20,450,117 $ 321t2963 $ 5J06,869 $ s8,169J49
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Puerto Rico Nattonal Guard Instilational Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico)
Statement ofCash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

BualDess - Activities - e Fur&
O[.rdtotrd Artruitior f,du.dotr.l

Fund Frrd ltld Totrl

Crlh ior! fton opcr.tltrg rdvldcs :

Receirb ftom corlce8simlire

Receirts from l€nt of lfid sd hriHing

Rec.irb ftorn Dihary conffiutila
Otb€r operrtih.l receirb
Payrrnb to generdl beflefts oftbE Pulrto Rbo

N.ti!tr 1 GDrd .rd rrrmbels
PayrrEnb to arlouitbs, ffic irrsurarce ard

edrEatbo benefib

Pay[Ents to suf,brs fol goods and servbes

Pay[Fllts to elph/Ees arld rehted co6b

Inrcmal bahnces

Cash provited S (wed in) aerating activities

Crh tot]! ftom c{it l rnd Elrted fnrncing rctiyiticr:
Acqutitin of cspisl.sseb

Cash used h capial and rchbd ftiarcirlg rctit/itbs

Crsh lorr! fiom lnre.thg rdvldet:
Interest coEcted on deposits and invesmEnrs

Proceeds fiorn hEatirr settbllE
Proceeds froft rEdenptbn ofiNestne s

Cash poviled by iwesting activities

Ircrese lr c.sh atrd csh cqulvdantr

$ lJlo,mo $

716547

(88;4?9)

(1,00862)

0Azs:147',)
(49,889)

ln572

(399,958)

23nw

243J73

(rstfi2)

\u25m

$ 450,m0 $ 4rm,m0
716547

243:173

(8817e)

0w962)

(1J57,806)

0lzsJ47)
(49,889

(l389JEl) (368,02'

(45,100)

35$7s 618137

(242&0')

(242,s0}

1,637,605

sA7t3o4

29 q 3@1n 70255 n6,tn
1980,m0 1980,0m

4,Aj $n vts t2,t&

2219J63 36t,|9 Ttlm 2;n8352

Q422fi)

(2422fi\

3,154J89

7 fi53,692

r,&fi39

rn24tr05

to7 345

558p83C.!h rtrd cr.h equivd.ntr, begining ofyear

C.rt rrd c.rl equivde !, cld ofyear $ 33,424, $ 665,428 $ 11,00828r

Recorcilbtim of operating incorrE (h6s) to net cash

Eov ed ry (Bed in) opemtirg rctirdtas:
Openting itcdrE (h6, (1,45210) 1546234 X9p2j 460pjl
AdjustEnts to recdrcft operating ircorrl (b6s) froin
operdtbos to rEt cash proviled by (used in) o[lerating rctiriitbs:

Deprecbtion and aoqtizatirtr 812936 8t}g36
B.d debt eryeE€ 4E,m 4g,m0
hcrcase (decrEase) in:

Accour$ receivabb (sD,Aq 668,000) (90,0m) (1rg71,t26)
Prepail e,eense (30,043) 1E,348 - 01,695)IntebalbrhrEes t97,5n 11.5\4n) (45,100)
Defened oJtfbrE of r€sourre frorn Fosirn .cMie I lg4:145 lg4JM

@ecrease) iocrcase in
Accd,trts payabb 318,703 (2j90) (B7pS2) 22gp6t
Net perBin lhbiEy t74gt t|pt
Deferred hfbws ofrEsqrrce ftolr lre6im.ctivitis OJm _ 0:nn

Cash Eovit€d by (usEd h) operatiog acMbs

$

$

Se€ accorry.ryilg Dotes to basa frlalrcbl state@ s -12-
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Paerto Rico Nafional Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commomvealth Puerto RicQ
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

1. REPORTINGENTITY

FIGNA is a component unit of the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico. It is a public corporation ascribed to the
Puerto Rico National Guard and created by Act No. 23 of hlJy 23, l99l (Act 23). FIGNA owns or has the
rights ofuse for the real property and other Foperty where the military shops (Duty Free Shops) are located.

Under Act 23, FIGNA has the authority to operate the military shops or to concession those operations to a
private party as well as to provide assistance benefits to the Puerto Rico National Guard members, spouses,

and descendants, including annuities, education and operational firnds. FIGNA is exernpt from taxation in
Puerto Rico.

FIGNA receives royalties from gross sales from the concessionaire that operates the Duty-Free Shops located
at Fort Allen in Juana Diaz; the mrmicipalities of San Juan, Cayey, Ceiba, Gwabo, Mayaguez, Arecibo, and
Vega Baja; Air Base Mrmiz in Carolina; military antique collections in San Juan; and USCG Air Station
Borinquen in Aguadilla.

FIGNA has the power to issue bonds for any principal amount that the Board ofDirectors considers necessary.
It can also ceate the necessary reserves to guarantee the payments ofsuch bonds and for the payment ofother
expenses that FIGNA considers necessary.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AIID SUMMARY OF SIGNITICA}TT ACCOIJNTING POLICTES

Use of eslimules

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions tlat affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenseVexpenditures dring the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Measurement focus, Basis of Accoanting and Financial Slslcment Presentdion

The accompanying basic financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the acrcrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, rwenues are recognized when eamed and expenses when
incurred, regardless ofthe timing ofrelated cash flows.

2.

Proprielary Funds

FIGNA maintains three major fimds, which are proprietary fimd types. These funds account for those
activities for which the intent of managernent is to recover, prinarily through user charges, the cost of
providing goods or services to the public. The proprietary fimds distinguish operating revenues and expenses
from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from FIGNA providing the
services that correspond to their principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues are generated mostly from
concessionaire royalties aod rental income. Operating expenses include depreciation and amortization,
professional services, utilities and all general and administrative experses, among other. Revenues and
expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses-
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Paerto Rico National Guad Institutional Trast
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Findncial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

The following is a description ofthe nature and purpose ofeach fund type:

Operational Fund - This fimd is the primary op€rating fund of FIGNA. It is used to account for all fmancial
resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The primary sources ofrevenue eamed by
this fimd are the concession income from the military shops, of which 38 percent is assigned by law, rental
income and interest income from investments. Such revenues must be used for the conshuction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation and maintenance of facilities; to compl€rnent the legislative appropriations
received annually by the Puerto Rico National Guard to attend to its administrative and operating expenses;

to supplement the expenses of the National Guard; to meet expenses that lead to bolstering the "esprit de
corps" of the members of the Puerto Rico National Guard and the social well-being, enjoyment, recreation
and other noo-profit purposes thereot and to cover the administrative expenses of FIGNA, as €stablished
through regulations adopted to such effects by virtue ofAct 23.

Annuities Fund - this firnd is used to account for three benefit programs to the active and retired members of
the Puerto Rico National Guard. The Annuities Program provides temporarily assistance to retted members
of the Puerto Rico National Guard who are at least 55 years old and have provided at least 20 years of
honorable service. Qualified retired members receive a monthly annuity of $ I 75 for a period up to five years

or until attaining age 60 and become eligible to receive beoefits ftom the Federal Gov€rnment. The Life and
Funeral Insurance Programs are available to active members of the Puerto Rico National Guard and retired
members that qualiff for the Annuities Program. The Life Insurance Program provides a fixed benefit of
$5,000 paid to the be,neficiaries, as designated by the insured. The Funeral Insurance Program provides benefit
ofup to $3,000 for un-reimbuned funeral expenses. The beneficiary must provide evidence to support the
amount requested. The primary sources of revenue eamed by this firnd are the concession income from the
military shops, of which 52 percent is assigned by law, and interest income from investnents. Also, active
mernbers must pay a montlly premium of$5 to be entided to the benefits under these programs. The benefits
of the program may be adjusted at the discretion of the Board of Directors to account for cost of living
inflation. The administrator of these programs cannot commit funds in excess ofprojected revenues in order
to maintain actuarial based reserves factoring in an inflation of 3o/o.

Educational Fund - this fund is used to account for financial resoruces provided to help cover educational
expenses incurred by the active members of The Puerto Rico National Guard and their family. The primary
sources ofrevenue eamed by this fund are the concession income from the military shops, ofwhich 10 percent
is assigned by law, and interest income from invesfinents. The educational expenses, as defined in the
economic assistance program, includes enrollment at university levels and post-secondary lwel. The amounts
to be reimbursed are determined by the Board ofDirectors.

Cash and cash eqaivole B

For financial statements purposes, FIGNA considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity
of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.

fnvesfircaB

Investments are carried at fair value, except for nonparticipating inveshent contracts (guaratrteed invesffnent
contacts and/or certificates of deposit), which are canied at cost. Fair value is determined based on quoted
market prices and quotations received from independent broker/dealers or pricing service organizations.
Invesbnent income, including changes in the fair value ofinvestrrents, is presented as interest income in the
statEment ofrevenues, expenses, and changes in net asse$ - proprieary funds. Realized gains and losses from
the sale of investnents and unrealized changes in the faL value of outstanding investnents are included in
the change in the fair value ofinvestrrents.
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Puerto Rico National Gaard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June i0, 2020

Fair Value Measwemcnt

FIGNA categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally

accepted accorurting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are

significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inpus are significant unobservable inputs.

Cqilal osseF

FIGNA defines capital assets as assets that (i) have an initial, individual cost of$5,000 or more at the date of
acquisition; and (ii) have a useful life oftwo or more years. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the time of donation.

Intangible assets are amodized over their estimated usefirl lives. Major outlays for capital assets atrd

improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed and amortized over the estimated useful life ofthe
improvements. The costs ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the assets or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized and charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense has
been incurred.

Capital assets ofthe proprietary funds are depreciated on the straight-line method over the assets' estimated
usefirl life. There is no depreciation recorded for land and construction in progress.

The estimated usefirl life ofcapital assets is as follows:

Years

Buildings and rights to use

Leasehold improvements
Equipment
Vehicles

20-40 yean
5-15 years

5 years

5 years

Inpairment of Capinl Assets

FIGNA accounts for asset impairment under the provisions of GASB Staternetrt No. 42, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for tmpairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement
establishes accounting and financial reportlng standards for impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is
considered impaired when its service utility has declined signifrcantly and unexpectedly. This statemetrt also
establishes accounting requirernents for insurance recoveries. A capital asset generally should be considered
impaired ifboth (a) the decline in service utility ofthe capital asset is large in magnitude and (b) the event or
change in circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. Impaired capital assets tbat will
no longer be used by the govemment should be reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value.

Accoana teeivable

As ofJune 30, 2020, all accounts receivable presented in the financial statements are considered collectable,
therefore, no provision for doubtful accounts has been rccorded in FIGNA's fioancial statements. During the
year ended June 30, 2020, FIGNA wrote offuncollectible rent amounting to 948,000.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Insrttutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Accounting for pension cos*

FIGNA is a participant in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employees Retirement System (the Pension
Plan), a multiemployer retirement plan. Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting
and Financial Reportingfor Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the ftope of GASB Statement
68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, FIGNA recognizes a pension
liability for its proportionate share of the collective pension liability under the Pension Plan, as well as its
proportionate share ofthe collective deferred outflows ofresources, collective deferred inllows ofresources,
and collective pension expense. FIGNA's allocation percentage is based on the ratio of FIGNA's benefit
paymens to total benefit payments under the Pension Plan. Changes in the total pension liability during the
period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred inllows ofresources or deferred outllows ofresourc.es
depending on the nature ofthe change, in the period incuned. Those changes in the total pension liability that
are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in
actuarial assumptions or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized
over the average of the remaining service life of all participants including retirees, in the qualified pansion
plan and recorded as a component ofpension expense beginning with the poiod in which they arose.

Defened Oatflows and Inflows olResourca

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Positioo r€ports a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial staterneot element, deferred outflows of resources, represents an increase
ofnet position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2020 relate to FIGNA's
participation in the Pension Plan.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position re?orts a s€parate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows ofresources represent a reduction ofnet position and resources that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inIlow ofresources (revenue) rmtil that time.

Clossification of nel positioa

The statement of net position presents FIGNA's assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting
with the difference reported as net position. Net position is reported in three categories:

Net Investment in Capital lssels - this consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization, and reduced by outstanding balances of debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement ofthose assets.

Restriaed Net Position - this results when conshaints placed on the net position's use are either extemally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation.

Unrestricred Net Position - this consists of the net position that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories. Ullrestricted net position often has constreints on resources that are imposed by
management but can be removed or modified. When both reshicted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, generally, it is FIGNA's policy to use resticted resources first, then the unrestricted resogrces as they
are needed,

-16-



Puerto Rico Nartonal Gaard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Cornmonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Cornpensaled absences

The employees of FIGNA eam 15 days of vacation and l8 days of sick leave annually. Vacation and sick
leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 60 and 90 days, respectively. In the event of employee
resignation, an employee is paid for accunulated vacation up to the maximun allowed. The proprietary fimd
financial statements prese the cost ofaccumulated vacation as a liability.

Irrletfund fiansactiorrs

Interfund transactions represent funds disbursed or services provided by one fimd on behalf of another fimd.
These transactions are recorded through interftnd receivables and payables and presented as amounts due to
and due from other fund. Interfund transactions where resources are tansferred between funds, without
requirement for rcpayment are recorded as transfers in by recipient fund and as tansfer out by the disbursing
fund, under other financing sourceVuses below operating transactions, in the staternents of revenues,
expenses aod changes in net assets. However, these Fansf€rs and related amounts receivable and payable are
considered internal balances and activities that have been eliminated in the frnancial statements' total column.

Rental incomc

Rental income is recognized as rentals become due. Rental payments received in advance are deferred until
eamed. All leases betweeo FIGNA and the tenants are operating leases.

Risk muagement

FIGNA is exposed to various risks ofloss from torts; theft of, dqmage to, atrd destruction ofassets; business
intemrption, errors and omissioris, natural disaster, among other. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters. Setded claims have not exceeded this commercial insurance
coverage in any ofthe three preceding years.

This space has been intentionally lefi in blank
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Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commomvealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Future Adoplion of Accounting Pronoancement

The following summarizes new accounting standards that have been issued but are not yet effective which
may bave a direct and material effect on FIGNA's financial statements once they are adopted.

GASB
Statement No.

Adoptbn rcquired in

fscal year

2021

2022

2022

2021

2023

2022

2022

2023

84

87

89

90

9l

92

93

94

96

Name

Fiduciary Activities

Leases

Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of
a Constmction Perbd

Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 6l

Conduit Debt Obligatbns

Omnibus 2020

Replacement of Interbak Ofened Rates

Public-Private and Public-Publfo Partnerships and
Availability Paynent Arrangpments

Subscription-Based Infomntbn Technolosr
AnangemenB

Certain Cornponent Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Interaal Revenue Code Section
457 Deferred Compensatbn Plans---an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
supersession ofGASB Stat€ment No. 32

The Annual Comprehensive Report

2023

97

98

2022

2022

3. GOINGCONCERN

GASB Statement No.56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the
AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards (GASB 56), estabhshes that the continuation ofa legally separate
govemmental entity as a going concem is assumed in fmancial reporting in the absence of iignincant
infonnation to the contrary.
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Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonweahh Puerto Rico)
Notes to Bdsic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Infomation that may significantly contradict the going concem assumption would relate to a govemmental
entity's inability to continue to meet its obligations as they become due without substantial disposition of
assets outside the ordinary course of govemmental operations, restructuring of debt, submission to the

oversight of a separate fiscal assistance authority or financial review board, or similar actions. Indicators such
as negative trends in operating losses and negative cash flows, possible financial difficulties such as

nonpayment or default of debt and/or restructurings or noncompliance with capital or reserve requirements,
and intemal or external matters impacting the governmental entity's ability to meet its obligations as they
become due, are factors that are considered in this evaluation.

Management's evaluation of FIGNA's going concem has identified the financial condition of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Commonwealth) and the Government Dwelopment Bank for Puerto Rico
(GDB) as an extemal matter that may affect the ability of FIGNA to continue as a going concern.

Following is a brief explanation of the financial difficulties being faced by the Commonwealth:

The Commonwealth is undergoing a severe fiscal, economic and liquidity crisis, as a result ofyears of large
govemmental deficits, economic recession, high unemployment, population decline, and high levels of debt
and pension obligations. Further stressing the Commonwealth's liquidity is the vulnerability of revenue
streams during tirnes of economic downtums and significant health care, pension and debt service costs. As
the Commonwealth's tax base has decreased and its revenues affected by prevailing economic conditions,
health care, pension and debt service costs have become an increasing portion of the Commonwealth's
General Fund budget, which has resulted in reduced funding available for other services. The
Commonwealth's high level ofdebt and unfirnded pension liabilities, and the resulting allocation ofrevenues
to service debt and pension obligations contributed to significant budget deficits for several years that werc
covered by the issuance ofadditional debt.

These matters and the Commonwealth's liquidity consFaints, among other factors, adversely affected its
credit ratings and its ability to obtain furancing at reasonable interest rates, if at all. Fudhermore, the principal
rating agencies have lowered their rating on the general obligation bonds ofthe Commonwealth to a default
rating. These agencies have also lowered to a default grade their ratings on the bonds of cerain of the
Commonwealth's instrumentalities, while other debt ratings have been lowered multiple notches to
noninvestnent grade levels.

As of June 30,2018, the date of the most recent audited financial statements of the Commonwealth, the
Primary Government of the Commonwealth reflects a net deficit of approximately $72.8 billion.

These conditions raise substantial doubts about the Commonwealth's ability to continue as a going concem
for a reasonable period oftime, which could affect the financial resources of FIGNA since it is a component
unit of the Commonwealth.

on June 30, 2016, the Puerto Rico ovenight, Management, and Economic stability Act, pub. Law I l4-lg7
@ROMESA) was €xracted into law. PROMESA establishes a Finaocial Oversight and Managemeot Board
for Puerto Rico (the Oversight Board) to oversee the furances ofthe Commonwealth and its effirts to achieve
fiscal responsibility and obtain access to capital markets. A critical component of pROMESA is the
requiremeNrt for the Commonwealth to develop and maintain a fiscal plan. Such fiscal plan must contain
numerous provisions goveming the territory or instumentality, including plans to pay debts, eliminate
deficits, _maintain essential public services and impose intemal conh;[ for fisLf govemance and
accountability.
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Paerto Rico National Guard Institational Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statetnents
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

On April 23,2021, the Oversight Board certified its most recent fiscal plan for the Commonwealth that
included the following categories of structual reforms and fiscal measures:

a. Human Capital and Welfare Reform

b. Kl2 Education Reform

c. Ease ofDoing Business Refonn

d. Power Sector Regulatory Refomr

e. Infrastructur€ and Capital Investuent Reform

f. Establishment of the Offrce of the CFO

g. Agency E{Iiciency Measures

h. Medicaid Reform

i. Enhanced Tax Compliance and Optimized Taxes and Fees

j. Reduction in UPR and Municipality Appropriations

k. Comprehensive Pension Reform

Also, the Oversight Board, on behalfofthe Commonwealth and certain instrurnentalities, has filed voluntary
petitions for reliefunder Tifle III of PROMBSA in the United States District Court for Puerto Rico (the Court).
Title III of PROMESA provides for similar procedures to Chapters 9 and I I ofthe Federal Banlcuptcy Code
seeking an orderly resnucturing of the local public finances, which includes a debt adjustnent process under
the supervision ofthe Court.

On January 18, 2022, the Title III Court entered an order approving the Commonwealth' Plan ofAdjusunent
(.'POA). The POA reduces $33 billion in bond debt, cuts overall debt by 80% and saves Puerto Rico more
than $50 billion in debt service payments. The Oversight Board will now determine an effective date for the

POA, at which the Commonwealth's prior debt will be reshuctured and creditors, public service union
members, and others will receive the cash payments agreed to under the POA. On lanolty 27, 2022, the
Oversight Board certified a new fiscal plan of the Commonwealth which reflects the POA, recent increases
in federal funding, and Puerto Rico's economic rocovery. In February 21,2022, the Oversight Board
amended the Joint Resolution of the General Budget for fiscal yar 2022 to appropriate fimds for the General
Fund operating expenses and to enable the Departnent of Treasury to make payments as set in the Plan of
Adjustrnent.

There are no assurances that these plans and other reliefmeasures to be adopted or proposed by the Oversight
Board and the Commonwealth will be firlly implemented or if implemented will ultimately provide the
intended results. The successfirl implementation of these plans depends on a number of factors and risks,
some of which are not within the Commonwealth's control.

Complete financial stat€ments of the Commonwealth can be obtained directly by contacting their respective
adminisfrative offices at:

Department ofthe Treasury ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico
Area de Contabilidad Cenkal
P.O. Box 9024140, San Juan, PR 00902
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Moaagement's Conchtsbn on Going Concern

FIGNA's management considers that substantial doubt might exist about the ability of FIGNA to continue as

a going concem as the Commonwealth may impose its will over FIGNA and try to access its assets in order
to alleviate their liquidity problems. As ofthe date ofissuance ofthese financial statements, no notifications
have been received from the Commonwealth regarding discontinuance of operations or intentions to access

our assets. Moreover, FIGNA does not expect to receive any future notification regarding those matters in
the foreseeable future.

4. CASH AIID DEPOSITS PLACED IIITH BAIIKS

The table presented below discloses the level of custodial credit risk assumed by FIGNA at June 30,2020.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event ofa financial institution's failure, FIGNA's deposits may not
be retumed to it. The Commonwealth requires that public funds deposited in commercial banls in Puerto
Rico must be firlly collateralized for the amount deposited in excess offederal depository insurance.

As of June 30, 2020, $137,332 of the depository bank balance of $11,145,613 was rminsured and
uncollateralized as follows:

Cash $ 11,008281

Carryirg
Amount

Depository
Bank Balance

$ 11,145,613

$ 702,000 $ 135,000

Amount Uninsurcd
and Uncollate raliz d

r37332

Total

$ 1,350,000

36,467

205,272

$

Such custodial credit risk loss was recorded on the basic financial statements of fiscal year 2015.
Accordingly, that cash is no longer recorded in FIGNA's basic financial statements.

FIGNA maintains cash balances at a local bank. Accounts maintained in this institution are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Total "ninsured balance as ofJune 30, 2020
amounted to approximately $8.9 million. Managernent believes that ctEdit risk is minimal, FIGNA has not
experienced any loss in connection with these bank deposits.

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As ofJune 30, 2020, FIGNA had the following accounts receivable:

Concessbnaire

Rent

Olher

Operational

Fund
Annuities

Fund

34,843

Educational
Fund

$ 513,000

36,467

170,429

$13 $1
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6. DUE FROM/DUE TO OTHER FI]]\DS

Amounts due from./due to (interfrmd balames) as of June 3O 2020 berween the govemmental firnds and the

proprieary fimd is as folbws:

Recelvable T! Amount

Annuitlls
Annuitbs

Educational

Operational

Educational

Operational

Advance of firnds

Advance offunds
Advance offunds

8,957,335
356,591

1,093,741

$

$l

7. II\TVESTMENTS

FIGNA is authorized to invest a percentage oftotal assets ofthe proprietary fund, with certain limitations, in
the following types of investnents: not less than 2ff/o and no more than 8tr/" in Treasury obligation and
agencies obligations ofunited States and Pu€rto Rico. No more than 3Slo in mortgage securities and no more
than 15% in equity securities and asset-backed securities.

Investnents securities should be rated at a minimum grade of Baa2lBBB or better by Standard & Poot's. At
June 30, 2020, FIGNA was not in compliance with certain ofthese requirexnents.

As of Jrme 30, 2020, the summary of the inveshnents held by FIGNA and their mahrity is as follows:

After one to AffBr five to After

five years ten years ten years

PR Aqueduct and Sewer Authority Bonds

PR Publto Buildings Authority Bonds

PR Sahs Tax Financing Corporation Bonds

Certiftates of Deposil

Tobl Investuents 014 $ 282,965

$

$

$

282,965

$ 2,635,375

10,687,500

6,869,595

Total

$ 2,635,375

10,687,500

7,152,560

12,000,014

$32,475,449

12,000,014

$ro,t r,4n
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The following is a summary of investnents showing their original cost, change in fair value and carrying
amount as of June 30, 2020:

$ 3,023,504

15,000,002

6p01,478

12,000,014

(388,r29)

(4,312,s02)

1,151,082

Original
Cost

Chrnge in
Frir Velue

Cerrying
Amount

2,635,375

10,687,500

7,152,560

PR Aqueduct and Sewer Autlority Bonds

PR Public Buildings Authority Bonds

PR Sales Tax Fimncing Corporation Bonds

Certificates ofDeposit
Total

PR Aqueduct ard Sewer Authority Bonds

PR Public Buildings Aufurity Bods
PR Sales Tax Financing Corporation Bords

Total

1 t4
$ 36,024,998 $32A7sfig

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to ar investrrent will not fulfill its obligatioos. As
ofJune 30, 2020, FIGNA's Investments, except Certificates of Deposits, are all rated CCC or lower.

At June 30,2020, fair value of investments based on the hierarchy ofinputs are deteflnined as follows:

Level I Level 2 Level3 Totrl

$

$$

$ 2,53s)7s

10,687,500

7,152,560

-J.34@,l-

$ 2i35,375
10,687,500

7,152,5fi

.$.?EZ!11l

$

Custodial credit risk relatEd investn€nts are the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, FIGNA may not be able to recover the value ofthe invesEnent or collateral securities that are in
the possession ofan outside party. At June 30, 2020, FIGNA's Invesfinents are held in custody by the hust
deparfinent ofa commercial bank in the name of FIGNA.
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8. CAPITALASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Bahnce

201 Additbns Retiremenb JuneI
Balance

2020

$ 7,586,857

1,300,000

8,886,857

19,393,435

2,348,657

37,r r8
21,779,210

t79

6,599,511

Capital assets non-depreciabk:

Land used in operations or leased

Land held for future developmart

Total

Capital assets depreciable:

Bnilding., implovernenh and rights to use

Equipments

Vehicle

Total

Less accumuhted deprechtbn

Total

Capital assets, net

Righ* to use

37,118

21,537,010 U2,2N

(14,366,7631 (812,936)

7,170,241 (570,7361

104

$ 7,586,857

1,300,000

8,886,8s7

19,322,585

2,t77,307

i! 0

70,850

171,350

I

Rights to use consists of cetain facilities owned by the Puerto Rico National Guard to operate military stores,
canteen and other similar services. The terms ofthe licenses expire in Sept€mber 30, 2054.

9. MILITARYCONTRIBUTIONS

FIGNA Annuities Fund receives montbly contributions of $5 from each active member of the Puerto fuco
National Guard who decides to enroll in the program. Military contributions recorded in the accompanying
basic financial statements amouoted to $243,773 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

IO. COMPENSATTDABSENCES

The activity for compensated absences, included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities of the
operational fund, during the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

s 45-786

-

g 24,826 $3 7$ IVacation
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11. RETIREMDNTPLAN

The Defined Benefit Pension Plan for Participants of the Employees' Retircment System of the Govemment
of the Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico (the Commonwealth) (the Plan) was created pursuant to Act No. 447
on May 15, 1951, as ameoded (Act No.447) to provide pension and other benefie to retired employees of
the Commonwealth, its public corporations and municipalities. Prior to the effect of Act No. 105 of August
23,2017 (Act No. 106-2017) the Plan was administered by the Fmployees' Retircrnent System of the
Govemment of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the System). Effective July 1, 2017, tll employer
confributions were eliminated pursuant to Act No. 106-2017 and the Commonwealth implemented a "pay-as-
you-go" @ayGo) system for the payment of pensions. Also pwsuant to Act No. 106-2017, the Systern was
required to liquidate its assets and transfer the net proceeds to the Departnent of Treasury of the
Commonwealth to pay pension benefits.

As a result of the implem€ntation of the PayGo system, the Plan does not meet the criteria in paragra.ph 4 of
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.6E, Accounting and Financial Reporting

for Pensions, to be cousidered a platr that is administered through a trust or equivaletrt arrangement and
therefore, is requircd to apply the guidance in GASB StatementNo.73, Accounting and Financial Reporting

for Pensions and Related Asse* Thot Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Un&r the guidance of GASB Statem€nt No. 73, the
Commonwealth and its component units are considered to be one employer, and are classified for financial
reporting purposes as a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. Therefore, the accompanying schedule
of employer allocations and the schedule of pemsion amounts by employer (collectively, the Schedules)
present the pension amounts attributable to the Commonwealth reporting entity (i.e., the Commonwealth and
its component units).

Pension benefits

The benefits provided to the Plan participants are established by Commonwealth law and may be amended
only by the Legislature with the Governor's approval, or by court decision. Certain plan provisions are
different for the three groups of members who entered the Plan prior to July 1, 2013 as described below:

Members of Act No. ,147 are generally those members hired before April l, 1990 (contributory
defroed beoefit pro gram).

Memb€rs of Act No. I of February 16, 1990 (Act No. l) are generally those members hired on or
after April 1, 1990 and on or before December 31, 1999 (contibutory, defined benefit program).
Memben of Act No. 305 of September Z, 1999 (Act No. 305 or System 2000) are generally those
members hircd on or after January l, 2000 and on or before June 30, 2013 (defured coohibution
pro$am).

All regular employees hired for the first time on or after July 1, 2013, and fonner unployees who participarcd
in the defined benefit program and the System 2000 program, and were rehired on or after July 1, 2013,
become mernbers of the Contributory Hybrid Program as a condition to their employment. In additioq
enrployees who at June 30,2013, were participants of prwious progams became part of the Contributory
Hybrid Program on July 1,2013. Also, Act No. 3 of April 4, 2013 (Act No. 3 of20l3) froze all retirement
benefits accrued through June 30, 2013 uder the defined benefit program and, thereaft€r, all future b€nefits
accrued under the defined conhibution formula used for the System 2000 program participants.

o

o

n
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(a) Semice Rabemen Eligibili$ Requbemen s

(l) Eli4ibility for Act No. 447 Members - Act No.447 members who were eligible to retire as of June
30, 2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to July l, 2013, Act No. 447 members
could retire upon (l) attairunent ofage 55 with 25 years ofcredited service, (2) attaitrment of age 58
with l0 years ofcredited service, (3) any age with 30 years ofcredited service, (4) for Public Oflicers
in High Risk Positions (the Commonwealth Police and Fkefighter Corps, the Municipal Police and
Firefighter Corps and the Custody Office Corps), attainment of age 50 with 25 years of credited
service, and (5), for Mayors of municipalities, attainment of age 50 with 8 years of credited service
as a Mayor. In addition, Act No. 447 members who attained 30 years ofcredited service by Decernber
31, 2013 are eligible to retire at any time.

Act No. 447 members who were not eligible to retire as ofJune 30, 2013 and did not attain 30 years
of credited service by December 31, 2013 are eligible to retire with l0 years of credited service upon
attainment of the retirement eligibility age shown in the table below.

Attained age

as of
June 30, 2013

Retirement

eligibility ageDate of birth

July I, 1957 or later

July l, 1956 o June 30, 1957

Before July l, 1956

55 or less

56

57 and up

61

60
59

In addition to the requirements of the table above, Act No. 447 Public Officers in High Risk Positions who
were not eligible to retire as ofJune 30, 2013 and did not attain 30 years ofcredited service by Decemb€r 31,
2013, are eligible to retire direcdy from active service upon the attainment ofage 55 with 30 years ofcredited
service.

(2) Eligibility for Act No. I Members - Act No. 1 members who were eligible to retire as of June 30,
2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to July l, 2013, Act No. 1 members could
retire upon (l) attrinment of age 55 with 25 years ofcredited service, (2) attainment of age 65 with
l0 years ofcredited service, (3) for Public Officers in High Risk Positions, any age with 30 years of
credited service, and (4) for Mayors, attainment ofage 50 with 8 years ofcredited service as a Mayor.

Act No. 1 members who were not eligible to retire as of June 30, 2013 are eligible to retire upon
attainment ofage 65 with 10 years ofcredited service. In addition, Act No. I Public Officen in High
Risk Positions who were not eligible to retirc as ofJune 30, 2013 are eligible to retire directly from
active service upon the attainment ofage 55 with 30 years ofcredited service.

(3) Eligibility for System 2000 Members - System 2000 melnbers who were eligible to retire as of June
30,2013 continue to be eligible to retire at any time. Prior to July 1,2013, System 2000 members
could retire upon attainment of age 55 for Public OIlicers in High Risk Positions and attainment of
age 60 otherwise.
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System 2000 members who were not eligible to retire as oflme 30, 2013 are eligible to retire upon
attainment of age 55 for Public Officers in High Risk Positions and upon attainmeot of the retirement
eligibility age shown in the table below otherwise.

Attained age

as of
June 30, 2013

Retir€ment

eliprtility ageDate of birth

1957 or later

1956 to June 30, 1957

1955 to June 30, 1956

1954 to June 30, 1955

Before July l, 1954

July
July
July
July

I
I
I
I

55 or less

56

57

58

59 and up

65

il
63

62

6l

(4) Eligibility for Members Hired $ter June 30, 2013 - Altainment ofage 58 ifa Public Officer in a High
Risk Position and attainment of age 67 otherwise.

(b) Conpulsory Relircnenl

All Act No. rg7 and Act No. I Public Officers in High fusk Positions must retire upon attainment of age
58 and 30 years of credited service. A two-year extensior may be requested by the momber from the
Superintetrdent ofthe Puerto Rico Police, the Chiefof the Firefighter Corps, or supervising authority as
applicable.

(c) Semice Rdbanenr Annaiq Benefib

An annuity payable for the lifetime of the member equal io the annuitized value of the balance in the
Defined Conhibution Hybrid Contibution Account at the time of retirement, plus, for Act No.447 and
Act No. I members, the accrued benefit detennined as of June 30, 2013. If the balance in the Defined
Contribution Hyb,rid Contribution Account is $10,000 or less, it shall be paid as a lump sum instead ofas
an annuity. For System 2fl)0 participants this service retirem€nt annuity benefit is not available.

(l) Accrued Benefit as ofJune 30, 2013 for Act No. 447 Members - T:he accrued benefit as of June 30,
20 I 3 shall be determined based on the average compensation, as defined, for Act No. 447 members,
the years ofcredited service, and the attained age of the member all as ofJune 30,2013. For Act No.
447 Mayors, the highest compensation, as defined, as a Mayor is determined as ofJune 30, 2013.

Ifthe Act No. 447 member had at least 30 years ofcredited service as ofJune 30, 2013, the accrued
benefit equals 65% ofaverage compensation if the member was under age 55 as ofJune 30, 2013 or
750lo ofaverage compensation ifthe member was at least age 55 as ofJune 30,2013. For participants
selecting to coordinate with social security (the Coordination Plan), the benefit is re-calculated at the
Social Security Retirement Age (SSRA), as define4 as I .5% of average compensation up to $6,6fi)
multiplied by years of credited service, up !o 30 years, plus 650/o (7 SYo if mmber was at least age 55
as ofJune 30,2013) of average compensation in excess of$6,600.

Ifthe Act No. 447 member had less than 30 years ofcredited service as ofJune 30, 2013, and attains
30 years of credited service by December 31,2013, the accrued benefit equals 550/o of average
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compensation if the member was under age 55 as ofJune 30,2013 or 600/o of average compensation
if the member was at least ag€ 55 as of June 30,2013. For participants selecting the Coordination
Plan, the bercfit is re-calculated at SSRA as l.5olo of average compensation up to $6,600 multiplied
by years ofcredited service, up to 30 years, plus 55% (60% ifmember was at least age 55 as ofJune
30,2013) of average compensation in excess of $6,600. Member contributions received from Act
No. ,147 mernbers eligible for this transitory benefit during the period beginning July l, 2013 and
ending upon the attainment of 30 years of credited service are considered pre-July l, 2013
contributions; the contributions to the Defined Contribution Hybrid Contribution Account begin after
the member attains 30 years ofcredited service.

If the Act No.447 member had less than 30 years of credited service as of December 31,2013, the
accrued benefit equals 1.50l, of average compensation multiplied by yean of credited service up to
20 years, plus 2o/o of arterage compensation multiplied by years of credited service in excess of 20
years. Maximum beirefit is 75Vo of avaage compensation. Except for Commonwealth Police and
Commonwealth Firefighters, the benefit is actuarially reduced for each year payment commences
prior to age 58. For participants selecting the Coordination Plaq the basic benefit is re-calculated at
SSRA as l% ofaverage compensation up to $6,600 multiplied by years of credited service up to 20
years, plus 1.5% of average compensation up to $6,600 multiplied by years of credited service in
excess of 20 years, plus 1.5% of average compensation in excess of $6,600 multiplied by years of
credited service up to 20 years, plus 2.V/o of avenge compensation in excess of $6,6fi) multiplied
by years of credited service in excess of 20 years. Except for Police aod Firefighters, the benefit is
actuarially reduced for each year payment commences prior to age 58.

For Act No. rl47 Mayors with at least 8 years ofcredited service as a mayor, the accrued benefit will
not be less than 570 ofhighest compensation, as defined, as a Mayor for each year ofcredited service
as a Mayor r.p to 10 years, plus 1.5% ofhighest compensation as Mayor for each year of non-Mayoral
credited service up to 20 years, plus 2.0% of highest compensation as Mayor for each year of non-
Mayoral credited service in excess of20 years. Non-Mayoral credited service includes service eamed
as a Mayor in excess of l0 years. Maximum benetit is 90% of highest compensation as a Mayor.

(2) Accrued Benefit as of June j0, 201j for Act No. I Members - The accrued benefit as of June 30,
2013 shall be determined based on the average compensation for Act No. I merrbers, the years of
credited service, and the attained age of the member all as of June 30, 20 I 3 .

For Act No. 1 Mayors, the highest comp€nsation as a Mayor is determined as ofJune 30, 2013.

If the Act No. 1 member is a police officer or fuefighter with at least 30 years of credited service as

ofJune 30, 2013, the accrued benefil equals 650lo ofaverage compensation ifthe member was under
age 55 as ofJune 30,2013 or 75o/o of average compensation if the member was at least age 55 as of
June 30, 2013.

For all other Act No. I mernbers, the accrued benefit equals l.5olo ofaverage compensation multiplied
by years of credited service. The benefit is actuarially reduced for each year payment commences
prior to age 65.

For Act No. l, Mayon with at least 8 years of credited service as a Mayor, the accrued benefit will
mt be less than 5% ofhighest compensation as a Mayor for each year ofcredited service as a Mayor
up to l0 years, plus 1.5% of highest compensation as Mayor for each year ofnon-Mayoral credircd
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service up to 20 years, pll,s Z.ff/o of highest compensation as Mayor for each year of non-Mayoral
credited service in excess of 20 yean. Non-Mayoral credited service includes service eamed as a
Mayor in excess of 10 years. Maximum benefit is 90% of highest compensation as a Mayor.

(tl) Special Bmefits

(1) Minimum Benefits

Past Ad hoc Increases

The legislahrre, from time to time, increases pensions for certain retirees as described in Act
No. 124 approved on June 8, 1973 and Act No. 23 approved on September 23, 1983.

Minimum Beoefits for Members who Retired before July l, 2013 (Act No. 156 of 2004, Act
No. 35 of2007, and Act No. 3 of20l3).

The minimum monthly lifetime income for members who retired or become disabled before
July l, 2013 is $500 per month effective July I, 2013 ($40O po month effective July 1, 2007
and $300 per month up to June 30, 2007).

Coordination Plan Minimum Benefit

A minimum monthly benefit is payable upon attainment of SSRA such that the benefit, when
added to the Social Security Benefit, is not less than the benefit payable prior to SSRA.

(2) Cost-of-Living A$ustmmts (COLA) to Pension Benefits

The Legislature, from time to time, increased pensions by 3% for retired and disabled members.
Beneficiaries are not entitled to COLAs granted after the retiree's death. The first increase was
granted by Act No. lO of 1992. Subsequent 3% increases have been granted wery third year since
I 992, with the latest 3olo increase established on April 24, 2007 and effective July I , 2fl)7 (rehoactive
to January l, 2007) for retired and disabled members that were receiving a monthly benefit on or
before January 1, 2004 (Act No. 35 of 2007). In addition, effective July 1, 2(X)8, any retired or
disabled member that was receiving a monthly annuity on or before January I , 2004 less than $ 1 ,250
per month received an increase ofup to 3% without orceeding the limit of$1,250 per month (Act
No. 35 of 2007).

(3) Special "Bonus" Benefits

Chris[nas Bonus (Act No. lrg, as Amended by Act No. 3)

An annual bonus of $200 for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabled member paid in
December provided the member retired prior to July l, 2013.

Medication Bonus (Act No. 155, as Amended by Act No. 3)
An annual bonus of $ 1 00 for each retiree, beneficiary, and disabled member to cover health
costs paid in July provided the member retired prior to July l, 2013. Evidence ofcoverage is
not requircd. The amount is pmrated if therc are multiple beneficiaries.
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FIGNA's proportion of tle total pension liability of the Retirement Plan and Actuarial Information

FIGNA's proportionate share of the total pension liability of the Retirement Plan and the proportion
percentage of the agglegate net pension liability of the Retirement Plan allocated to FIGNA as of June 30,
2020 amounted to $862,429 and 0.00347%, respectively. The Commonwealth's total pension liability, from
which an allocation was made to FIGNA's financial statements as of June 30,2020, was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July l, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019 (measurEment dat€ as of
June 30, 2019).

(a) Actumial Methods and Assanptions

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods in the measuremetrt
period.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for Juoe 30, 2018 was 3.50%. This represents the municipal bond retum rate as chosen
by the Commonwealth. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Mrmicipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obtgation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA,/Aa or higher.

Mortality

The morality tables used in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation were as follows:

- Pre-retirement Mortalry

For general employees not covered under Act No. 127, RP-2014 Employee Mortality Rates for males
and females adjusted to reflect Mortality Irnprovement Scale MP-2019 Aom the 2006 base year and
projected forward using MP-2019 on a generational basis. For members covered under Act No. 127,
RP-20 I 4 Employee Mortality Rates are assumed with blue collar adjusments for males and adjusted
to reflect Morality knprovement Scale MP-2019 from the 2006 base year and projected forward
using MP-2019 on a gelerational basis. As generational tables, they reflect mortality improvements
both before and after the measurement date.

100% of deaths while in active service are assumed to be occupational for mernbers covered under
Act 127.

- Post-retirement Healtlry Moftality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for healthy retirees and beneficiaries based on a study of the
Plan's experience from 2ffi7 to 2012 Lad, updated expectations regarding fuhrre mortality
improvernent. The 2010 base rates are equal to 920lo of the rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table
for Males and 95% of the rates from the LJP-1994 Mortality Table for Females, both projected from
1994 to 2010 using Scale AA. The base rates are projected using Mortality Improvement Scale MP-
2019 on a generational basis. As a generational table, it reflects mortality improvements both before
and after the measurement date.
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- P ost-retirement Dis ablbd Mortality

Rates which vary by gender are assumed for disabled retirees based on a study ofthe Plan's experieoce
from20o7 to 2012 and updated expectations regarding future mortality improvemetrt. The 2010 base
rates are equal to 105% of the rates from the UP-1994. Mortality Table for Males aod l15% of the
rates from the UP-1994 Mortality Table for Females. The base rates are projected using Mortality
Improvernent Scale MP-2019 on a generational basis. As a generational table, it reflects mortality
improvements both before and after the measurement date.

Aher Assumptions as ofJune 30, 2019

Actuarial cost method
Inflation rate
Salary increases

Entry age normal
Not applicable
3 .00% per year. No compensation increases are assumed until
lluly 1,2021 as a result ofAct No. 3-2017, four-year extension of Act
No.66-2014, and the current gen€ral economy.

@) Sensitivily of the Total Pension Liabilily to Changes in the Discoant Rate

The following presents the total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.5fflo, as well as what
it would be if it were calculated using the discount rate of I -percentage point lower (2.50lo) or l-percentage-
point higher (4.507o) than ft6 6st"rl rate (dollars in thousands):

l% Decrease Current Discount

Q.50%) Rat€ (3.500/0)

l% Increase

(4.50o/o)

FIGNAs proportbnate share

of net pensbn liability

Pension erpense and Deferred Outllows ofResources end Deferred Inflows ofResources

Pension expense recognized by FIGNA for the year ended June 30, 2020 related to the Retirement System
amounted to $255,592, which has been included as part of adminish?tive exp€nses in the accompanying
staterrent ofrevenues, expenses and changes in net position.

This space has been intentionally lefi in blank
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The following presents a summary of changes in the deferred out{lows ofresources and deferred inflows of
resources (excluding employer specific amounts) for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Deferred
outfbws of
resources

Deferred
inflows of
r€sources

Difference between expected and actual eryerience
Changes in assumptions

Changos in employer proportion

Benefits paid after measuement date

2021
2022
2023
2024

$
28,005
24,187

tg
tu
t&
165

29,239
22,296

$

51 535

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding employer
specific amounts) relatcd to pensions at June 30, 2020 will be recognized in pension expense (benefit) in
fuhre years as follows:

Yean ending

June 3 Amormt

$

$ 657

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows and deferred inllows of resources
related changes in proportion. These amounts should be recopized (amortized) by each employer over the
average of the expected remaining service lives ofall plan members, which is six (4) years for 2020.

12. CONCESSIONAGREEMENT

Efrective July 1, 2017, FIGNA entered in a contract with Castro Business Enterprise, Inc. (the

"Concessionaire") to operate FIGNA's military stores up to June 30, 2021. On June 30, 2021, the conhact
was extended for an additional year. The concessionaire shall provide service to all members of the military
forces ofPuerto Rico as defined in section 2914 ofFIGNA's Act of 1991, as amended. Under this agreement,
the concessionaire makes a monthly payment amountiry to M50,000 and is responsible for capital
improvements to the stores and for the payment of store expenses such as utilities, security and maintenance
among others.

-32-



j

Puerto Rico National Guard Institutional Trust
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth Pueao Rico)
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

13. RENTALREVENUE

FIGNA leases, as lessor, commercial spaces located in various places in Puerto Rico through operating lease
contacts which expire in various dates until April 2025 . During the year ended June 30, 2020, FIGNA eamed
$795,81 I in rental income from all leases.

The following is a schedule of future minirnum rentals on noncancelable op€rating leases as ofJune 30,2020:

Years ending
June 3 Amount

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$ 647,004
575,0U
575,0M
479,170

170
755 352

14. CONTINGENCIESAI\DRISKMANAGEMENT

Contingent Liabilities

FIGNA is a defendant or co-defendant in various lther lawsuits in the normal course of operations. Some
claims have been brought against FIGNA by employees and others. Based on the opinion of legal counsel,
managenent has concluded that no reserves are required in relation to these cases as ofJune 30, 2020.

Risk Management

FIGNA is exposed to various risks ofloss from torts, theft of, damage to, and deshuction of asseB, extra
expense, errcrs and omissions, employee iqiuries and illnesses, natural disasters, and other losses.
Commercial insurance coverage is obtained for claims arising from such matters. The commercial insurance
coverage and premiurn are negotiated by the Corporation and the Treasury Deparment. The cost is paid by
the Treasury Department and reimbursed by the Corporation.

Concenhation of Credit Risk

Financial instuments that poteotially subject FIGNA to concentration of credit risk consist of accounts
receivable and due from govemmental entities. Accounts receivable and due from governmental entities are
due from customers, municipalities and govemmental inshumentalities mainly located in Puerto Rico-
FIGNA generally does not require collateral and credit losses are provided for periodically thmugh the
allowaoce for doubtfirl accounts. FIGNA routinely assesses the financial strength of its customem to reduce
its exposure to potential credit losses.

$
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15. LITIGATIONSETTLEMENT

During the fiscal year ended on June 30,2018, FIGNA submitted a claim to FINRA for realized and
unrealized losses on its hvestnent portfolio which menagement believed were caused by its investrnent
manager. On August 2019, FIGNA and its invesment manager reached a s€ttlement whereby FIGNA
received approximately $2.0 million, which consists of $2,750,000 total settlem€nt less $770,000 of legal
expenses.

16. SIIBSEQUENTEVENTS

FIGNA evaluated subsequent events until March 4, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. Except as stated in Note 3, no events have occurred subsequent to the statement ofnet position
date and though the date the financial statements were available to be issued, that would require additional
adjusment to, or disclosure in the basic financial statements.
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Collective Total Pension Liability
June 30, 2020
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